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(4) The parties can execute this Assignment and backdate it to whatever date they 
want to but the Pooling and Servicing Agreement specifically has a Closing Date for 
when all loan documentation has to be in the hands of the trust's document 
Custodian, which is by the Closing Date of the trust or within ninety (90) days 
afterwards with limited exceptions; thus, this transfer, whether backdated or not, 
still contravenes New York Estates Powers & Trusts§ 7-21.4 and is still void; 

(5) This Assignment circumvents the intent of the first Assignment, contradicting it, 
rendering BOTH suspect for manufacturing and misrepresentation of the facts, 
given the undated indorsements on the Note; and 

(6) It is still suspect as to why the parties chose to wait so long to attempt to convey 
the Note into the trust pool. The LPOA clearly refers to Home Loan Services, Inc. 
as the "Servicer" and so one would think that the Servicer would know the REMIC 
trust governing regulations better than anyone. Such is not apparent here, which 
leads the Examiner viewing this report to view the attempt as suspect document 
manufacturing, containing false and misrepresentative statements about the nature 
and legality of the Assignment, probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal 
Code§ 817.535. 

On October 11, 2012, Ablitt Scofield was substituted for RA&S. After approval, Ablitt Scofield 
changed its name to Connolly, Geaney, Ablitt & Willard ("Connolly"). Monica L. Miller (FBN 
91555) filed the paperwork for Connolly's Antonio Campos (FBN 672467). When the alleged 
Original Note was produced, the second indorsement-in-blank stamp was smudged and illegible 
as opposed to the originally-proffered stamp and was still below the footer of the document, 
making it suspect for an add-on prior to filing the Complaint. 

Further, since this is a REMIC trust, there is accounting absent from the filings by the Plaintiff 
trust, who may have collected default insurance payments, credit default swap payments or other 
third-party payor benefits which rightfully should have been applied to the accounting for the 
Borrower's loan. 

Further, since the Master Servicer is responsible for making the payments and keeping the loan 
out of default, there are issues with whether the Borrower was actually in default in the first 
place. Despite the foregoing issues, Judge Miller signed the Final Judgment of Foreclosure on 
March 26, 2014 and it was filed for record on 03-28-2014 as CFN#2014044227. 

The property was purchased by the Plaintiff for $100.00, when there are issues as to whether the 
Plaintiff was even entitled to take the property in the first place. 

Thus, it is highly likely the trust REMIC will: 
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(1) Attempt to write the loan off as a loss to the pool, which could result in 
hidden attempts to commit income tax evasion because the issues dictate 
that the loan never made the trust pool in the first place; 

(2) If the loan was in default as the REMIC trustee claims (Trustees have no 
knowledge when a default occurs), why was a delinquent loan placed into an 
allegedly-performing trust pool?; and 

(3) The tmst will sell the home, after making money off of the third-party 
payments, and allegedly unjustly enrich itself again, on top of the third-party 
payments. 

It is implied that the State's Attorney and a sitting grand jwy may be able to uncover the real 
truth behind the taking of this property, as the conflicting Assignments bring enough probable 
cause to the scenario, as relied upon by the Plaintiff and Plaintiff's counsel, to file an action and 
foreclose, falsely claiming (fraud on the court) that the Borrower was in default, when it knew or 
should have known, it had already enriched itself on third-party payments. The multiple actors 
involved in this process would intimate violations of Florida RICO statutes. 

Case No. 107: PHH Mortgage Corporation -v. Teresita Gaylon et al (2012 CA 002699 MF) 

This case appears to center around at least 2 (two) suspect documents, one titled "Assign
ment of Mortgage" prepared by PHH Mortgage Corporation, the other tiled as a "Satisfac
tion of Mortgage" prepared by a Brenda Rostrom to wit: 

CFN#2012085993, electronically recorded on 06-06-2012. 
Document Prepared by: Sherri Klish of Pllll Mortgage Corporation (who happens to be 
the Plaintiff in the instant action). 
Signor(s): Dolores Lauria, who claims to be an Assistant Secretary of MERS as a "Nomi
nee" for BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., SUCCESSOR BY MERGER TO MERRILL LYNCH 
CREDIT CORPORATION. The document attempts to assign a Mortgage to PHH Mort
gage Corporation on 03-07-2012. 
Witnesses: The signing of the instrument was apparently not witnessed by any separate 
witnesses other than the Notary. 
Notary: Beth Lashley (New Jersey Notary Public) 
Issues: There is no corporate seal on the assignment nor are there any signatures by an act
ing Officer (President, Vice President, or CEO). The assignment appears to be prepared by 
the same entity that is the named Plaintiff in the foreclosure complaint-this may be a con
met of interest. 
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The signature appears to be that of one's initials which is a potential marker of robosign
ing. It appears from this document that "Bank of America" is the successor to the Original 
Lender (Merrill Lynch Credit Corp), however a copy of a Note attached to the Complaint 
has a special indorsement on the 3rc1 page whereby PBB Mortgage Corporation asserts it
self as an "Authorize (sic) Agent for Merrill Lynch Credit Corporation" as an apparent 
self-indorsement. 

CFN#2012168947, recorded by presentment on 11-15-2012. 
Document prepared by: Brenda Rostrom (possibly of Speedy Title & Appraisal Review 
Services in Mt. Laurel, NJ) 
Signor(s): Michelle C. Elizardo-Young, who claims to be an Assistant Secretary of MERS 
and Dominique Lewis, who also claims to be an Assistant Vice President of PHH Mortgage 
Corporation. The document claims to show that the Mortgage assigned to PHH Mortgage 
Corporation was satisfied in full on 10-31-2012. 
Witnesses: The signing of the instrument was witnessed by Gwendolyn Hawkins. 
Notary: Michelle L. Eichmann (New Jersey Notary Public) 
Issues: The Satisfaction may not be valid if the previous assignment falsely conveyed the 
alleged mortgage. 

A Lis Pendens was filed by SHAPIRO, FISHMAN & GACHE, LLP attorney Jennifer L. Terrana 
(FBN 77648) as CFN#2012089534 on 6-12-2012. 

The Complaint to Foreclose was also filed by SHAPIRO, FISHMAN & GACHE, LLP attorney 
Jennifer L. Terrana (FBN 77 648) who appears to have relied on the foregoing assignment to 
commence foreclosure proceedings. Attached to the Complaint is a copy of a purported prom
issory note with a 2 (two) indorsements on the 3rd page. 

One of the indorsements is a special indorsement to Pllli Mortgage Corporation whereby Pllli 
Mortgage Corporation asserts itself as an "Authorize (sic) Agent for Merrill Lynch Credit Corpo
ration" as an apparent self indorsement. The next indorsement is a blank-indorsement by PHH 
Mortgage Corporation (which appears circumspect given the fact that there is already a specific 
indorsement to the same). 

The Complaint declares that Federal National Mortgage Association is the owner of the note. 
The Case Status is CLOSED as the defendant short-sold the property prior to any judgment and 
the case having been dismissed as a result. Despite this case's outcome, the intent to use manu
factured documents containing false and representative information constitutes probable cause 
for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 81 7.535 and potential Florida RICO violations. Further, 
the fact the Assignment may NOT have been attorney supervised may constitute unauthorized 
practice oflaw. 
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Case No. 108: U. S. Bank, N.A. as Trustee for the C-BASS Mortgage Loan Asset-Backed 
Certificates, Series 2006-CB2 v. Jose B. Castro et al (2009 CA 6680 MF) 

CASE NOTES: This action was brought by the law firm of Shapiro & Fishman, LLP and 
its attorney representative Hollan Fintel (FBN 847631). She also appears to have :filed the 
Notice of Lis Pendens for record on 07-07-2009 as CFN#1009105942. This attorney is noto
rious (in other jurisdictions) for operating outside of attorney-in-fact status to achieve the 
end result (in one instance in a Tampa-area :filed assignment of mortgage, Fintel claimed 
she was a "Vice President of Loan Documentation" for Wells Fargo Bank when she was 
given no authority of the sort). Fintel appears to have filed this case for Craig T. Smith 
(FBN 20315). The Complaint was not verified (attorney appears to be acting as a fact
based witness, making unsubstantiated claims). The alleged Note and Mortgage, executed 
in favor of New Century Mortgage Corporation (which :filed for bankruptcy on April 2, 
2007) were attached to the Complaint. There was an Assignment of Mortgage recorded in 
the real property records of Osceola County, Florida which was attached to this case as 
well. 

CFN#2006214661, recorded by presentment on 08-28-2006 
Document Prepared by: "B. Burnett" (alleged employee from Litton Loan Servicing, LP in 
Houston, Texas) 
Signer: Stephen L. Nagy (claiming to be "V.P. of Records Management" for New Century 
Mortgage Corporation), scribbling an initial "S" to the Assignment of Mortgage, signing in 
Orange County, California, attempting transfer of the Note and Mortgage into the trust 
REMIC pool. 
Notary: Michelle Flores (California Notary Commission No. 1464534; expired in 2008) 
Witnesses: (first name and spelling illegible), Shirley Richard 
Issues: Aside from what appears to be an extra "2" under the handwritten "at page" por
tion of this document, there are numerous indicators of robosigning and document manu
facturing (i.e. scribbled signatures, rubber stamp insertions, document prepared in one lo
cation by preparer with alleged hearsay knowledge, sending it to another party with no 
knowledge to sign the document). 

The Closing Date of this REMIC appears to be February 28, 2006, which is the date that the trust 
REMIC issues the Certificates to the investors. On January 24, 2007, the REMIC filed an SEC 
Form 15-d(6) showing the total number of investors at "84". This would appear to be the funda
mental reason why the trust was no longer required to report data to the U.S. Securities and Ex
change Commission. It could also mean that the REMIC paid off several of the tranches due to 
credit events or that the investors moved their funds out of the pools. Whatever the case, the As
signment to the Pool was supposed to have occurred before February 28, 2006. At issue is 
whether the Assignment was supposed to be fully recorded in the real property records BEFORE 
the Closing Date and submitted to the trust. 
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This issue was probably never addressed by anyone, prior to the taking of the property. 
The Note proffered with the Complaint shows a partially redacted signature of Diana Nor
iega ("A.V.P./ Trailing Docs") on an undated indorsement-in-blank, yet the Assignment is 
specifically rendered to the trust pool (without the three (3) true sales), so it is undeter
mined whether those true sales actually occurred: 

(1) from Party A (the originator) to Party B (the sponsor/seller); 

(2) from Party B (the sponsor/seller) to Party C (the Depositor); and 

(3) from Party C (the Depositor) to Party D (the Trustee for the REMIC), 
as the Assignment shows the transfer immediately from Party A to Party D 
with no proof of effective transfer of the Note. 

With third-party payment potential, it may be likely that the Defendant was not in default. None
theless, Judge Waller issued a Final Summary Judgement of Foreclosure, which was recorded on 
02-05-2010 as CFN#2010016870. A Certificate of Title was issued to the REMIC trust on June 
1, 2010 and filed for record on 06-03-2010 as CFN#2010079848. 

To date, the Osceola County Sheriff's Office is attempting to serve an Alias Writ of Possession 
on the Property which was ordered by then-Clerk Malcolm Thompson on June 9, 2011 and it is 
undetermined whether the REMIC has actually taken possession of the property. The REMIC 
may have already been paid in full for this Property. Unjust enrichment may be at issue here. 
The Assignment may be misrepresentative when used in conjunction with the undated Note in
dorsement-in-blank, thus probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535 and 
Florida RICO statutes. 

Case No. 109: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Trustee for the Certificateholders ofthe MLMI 
Trust, Mortgage Loan Asset-Backed Certificates, Series 2006-WMCJ v. 
Adaljisa Revelo et al (2012 CA 1402 MF) 

This Complaint was filed by Marni Sachs (FBN 92531) for Jonathan Meisels (FBN 29235) of 
Robertson, Anschutz & Schneid, P.L. ("RA&S") on March 26, 2012. Sachs also recorded the 
Notice of Lis Pendens for Meisels on 03-27-2012 as CFN#2012043331. The Lender on the prof
fered Note with the Complaint is the now-defunct WMC Mortgage Corp., whose trust vehicles 
were the subject of numerous lawsuits by investors for misrepresentation of facts contained with
in the prospectus as to the quality of the loans in the pool. 
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The indorsement-in-blank affixed to the Note under the Borrower's signature is undated. The 
MERS-originated Mortgage is also attached to the Complaint. Instead of Wells Fargo Bank as 
Trustee having its own duly-authorized representative verify the complaint, it appears that Bank 
of America, N .A. (through a chain of successors) attempted to verify the Complaint as Servicing 
Agent, which the Examiner here finds the statements contained in the Complaint to be deficient, 
as there is nothing in the language herein that states how the person verifying the Complaint 
came to have personal knowledge of the facts stated therein. 

On February 11, 2013, RA&S withdrew as counsel and was substituted by Ablitt Scofield attor
neys Menina E. Cohen (FBN 14236); Michel Morgan (FBN 102764), who filed a Notice of 
Change of Firm Name; and Paul McCord (FBN 913110). Judge Pleus granted a Final Judgment 
of Foreclosure on February 13, 2014. The alleged original Note contained a faded indorsement
in-blank that was totally illegible. 

There is also an Assignment of Mortgage attached to the back of the Original Note and 
MERS-originated Mortgage, which is discussed below: 

CFN#2011121115, electronically recorded on 09-01-2011 
Document Prepared by: Mary Ann Bierman (alleged employee of Bank of America, N.A. in 
Ventura County, California and known robosigner) 
Signers: Srbui Muradyan and Kathy Oriard, who both claim to be Assistant Secretaries for 
MERS, attempting a standalone Assignment of BOTH the Mortgage and Note to the 
REMIC trust Plaintiff in this proceeding, which the Plaintiff trust and its counsel appear to 
rely on, having attached it to the Complaint they filed. 
Notary: L. L. Llanos (California Notary Commission No. 1921705; still active), certifying 
under Penalty of Perjury under California law that the signors have authorized capacities 
to act. 
Witnesses: Barbara Nord, Aida Duenas (known document preparers and robosignors from 
Bank of America, N.A.) 
There are multiple issues with this Assignment of Mortgage, to wit: 

(1) The document contains multiple markers of document manufacturing and 
robosigning, construed to mean that the signors did NOT read the document 
before they affu:ed their signatures to it; 

(2) MERS cannot convey or assign the Note because MERS does NOT have an 
interest in the Note; 

(3) Bank of America, N .A. document preparers appear to have complete and total 
disregard for MERS policies, as they have used the old MERS address in Ocala, FL 
in violation of MERS policies which declared that address void after December 6, 
2010; 

359 of412 



COMPREHENSIVE FORENSIC EXAMINATION OF THE 
REALPROPERTYRECORDSOFOSCEOLACOUNTY,FLORIDA 

(4) The MERS address in Ocala, FL was actually assigned to Electronic Data 
Systems ("EDS") and NOT MERS. MERS was basically using this address, which 
in of itself is a document manufacturing plant, as a cover mail stop; 

(5) The Closing Date of this REMIC trust was February 14, 2006; therefore, any 
attempt to Assign a Mortgage to this REMIC contravened New York trust law at 
§ 7-2.4 and is void; and 

(6) Since Bank of America, N.A. appears to be the alleged Servicing Agent in the 
Complaint, the Assignment appears to be self-serving for Bank of America, N.A. to 
achieve its objectives in the taking of the property. 

Despite these issues, the property was sold and a Certificate of Title issues to the Trust REMIC in 
c/o Connolly, Geaney, Ablitt & Willard, P. C., who filed bankruptcy two months later. The Cer
tificate of Title was recorded on 04-02-2014 as CFN#2014046049. Because MERS cannot con
vey the Note, and the signers claim to state that it is so, then MERS is being used as a cover in 
name only to hide the chain of title and custody of the Note. Due to the improprieties and false 
and misrepresentative statements upon which counsel and the Plaintiff relied, there is probable 
cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535. Further, because the parties acted in 
concert in the taking of the property, Florida RICO statutes appear to also apply to this scenario. 
Because Bank of America, N.A. employees may NOT have been supervised by an attorney when 
this Assignment was drafted, there are also likely issues of unauthorized practice of law. 

Case No. 110: Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. v. Edith Chavez et al (2008 CA 8001 MF) 

This older case came into the target period due to the lengthy pendency. The attempted self-veri
fying Complaint appears to have been filed by Marshall C. Watson ("Watson") attorney Nalini 
Singh (FBN 43700) on behalf of Karen A. Thompson (FBN 96440). The MERS-originated 
Mortgage attached to the Complaint names the Plaintiff as the original lender on the Mortgage. 
Singh also filed the Notice of Lis Pendens on 09-16-2008 as CFN#2008147970. 

There is an unrecorded Assignment attached to the Complaint wherein Patricia Arango (another 
Watson attorney who received a brief suspension from practicing law for what appears to be the 
same behavior here) claims to be an Assistant Secretary of MERS as nominee for the original 
Lender, as Assignor, in what appears to be an Assignment of the Mortgage and Note to the origi
nal Lender, as Assignee. Other than the use ofMERS, and the fact the effective date is ''blank", 
Florida Notary Kelly A. Anderson (DD 505469; expired) affixed her signature and seal to the 
document. 
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This AssiiWlllent makes absolutely no sense whatsoever. unless you factor in that that the use of 
MERS means that the Note was securitized into one of Countrywide's portfolios. Still, this has 
not been proven. The Assignment was recorded on 08-21-2008 as CFN#2008134723. Further, 
the Note contains an indorsement-in-blank by David A. Spector, Managing Director for Coun
trywide Home Loans, Inc. This would be construed to mean that the intent of Countrywide 
Home Loans, Inc. was to assign the Note and Mortgage somewhere else, again unknown. Coun
trywide Home Loans, Inc. at that point could have simply been the servicer for the unknown trust 
REMIC; however, that too has not been established. It further appears that the Defendant home
owner was trying to do a short sale on the property. The Defendant then filed for bankruptcy 
protection and the bankruptcy action was eventually cancelled. 

Judge Legendre dismissed the case without prejudice on December 3, 2010, still within our tar
get but if only for the provision of the example of the manufactured Assignment, used to demon
strate a pattern of behavior, even if there is no resulting prosecution. Whatever the matter, the 
Examiner does not believe that the real party in interest was present during the pendency of this 
proceeding and thus constituted a waste of the Court's time and resources. This case is very 
marginal within the time frame for being unviable. 

Case No. 111: Bank of America, N.A. v. JosephS. Steiger et al (2010 CA 5795 MF) 

This case was initiated by the Plaintiff though its counsel, Edward B. Pritchard (FBN 712876) of 
then-Kass, Shuler, Solomon, Spector, Foyle & Singer, P.A. ("Kass-Shuler,), who also filed the 
Notice of Lis Pendens on 09-28-2010 as CFN#2010142905. The pendency ofthe case comes 
within the target range of our examination, hence the review of this case. Kass-Shuler's Eliza
beth M. Ferrell (FBN 52092) also filed documents in this matter. 

Despite the fact that Pritchard claims the Complaint is verified, evidence of it does not show up 
until the very last page of the Complaint, wherein Aaron Formby (rubber stamped), who claims 
to be an Assistant Vice President of Bank of America, scribbled his name. 

Formby appears to be signing for BAC Home Loans Servicing, LP, LPas Servicing Agent for 
Bank of America, N.A., which is the servicer's attesation, not the Lender's true representative. 
Given the scribbled signature, it is highly likely that if he was put on the stand and examined, 
Formby could not attest to any of the information he attempts to verify, because he does not have 
actual personal knowledge of the events to which he is attesting. The original Lender appears to 
be the Plaintiff. There is no endorsement on the Note. It appears the Defendants retained coun
sel who filed affirmative defenses, which Kass-Shuler's Ferrell motioned the Court to strike. 
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It further appears that Robertson, Anschutz & Schneid, P.L. ("RA&S")'s Jonathan Meisels (FBN 
29235) filed a Notice of Appearance as Co-Counsel, illustrating the pattern of resulting activity 
when a challenge to the foreclosure is filed. The Plaintiff ended up substituting in RA&S in for 
Kass-Shuler. 

Due to disagreements with the Plaintiff, Ablitt Scofield was substituted in for RA&S. There was 
no Motion for Substitution of Party Plaintiff; however, on December 27, 2012 (within the exami
nation target range) Ablitt Scofield's Menina E. Cohen (FBN 14236) filed a Motion to Voluntary 
Dismiss the case and discharge the Lis Pendens. The Notice was later filed with the Clerk on 01-
14-2013 as CFN#2013007761. Suspiciously enough however, the last two documents in the case 
file show the name of the Plaintiff changed to BAC Home Loans Servicing, LP without any ap
parent permission from the Court. This is another case that appears to constitute a waste of the 
Court's time and resources and lends further suspicion to pattern behavior by Plaintiff's counsel. 

Case No. 112: M & T Bank 11. Sandra Cha11ez et al (2013 CA 3800 MF) 

This case was filed by Marc Ruderman (FBN 899585) of Clarfield, Okon, Salomone & Pincus, 
P.L. ("Clarfield"), who also filed the Notice of Lis Pendens on 11-06-2013 as CFN#2013175220. 
The Verification by Leticia Sanchez (Document Coordinator) does not state WHO she is em
ployed by nor does it state how she has personal knowledge of the facts stated in the Complaint. 
More than likely, a Clarfield employee or attorney prepared the document for signing. 

The bottom of Page 3 of 3 of the proffered Note contains what appears to be a reversed 
"smudge" from an endorsement affixed on the back of the Note. The page behind the Note con
tains two undated indorsements. There is even a place to date the indorsement-in-blank, yet 
Meghan Halpin (who signed the following discussed Assignment of Mortgage) failed to place 
the date within the endorsement. 

Further, there is nothing to indicate how and when Michele Sjolander (whose indorsement 
stamps are allegedly held and affixed by ReconTrust Company, N.A. employees) affixed the 
stamp and whether or not an M & T Bank employee simply wrote their employer's name into the 
Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. (first) "indorsement-in-blank" stamp before Assigning their 
rights to the Note away. There would not need to be an endorsement from M&T Bank to anyone 
else if M&T was the Plaintiff. Here it appears otherwise. It appears the indorsement signer also 
signed the Assignment of Mortgage as well. 
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CFN#2012163204, recorded by presentment on 11-06-2012 
Document Prepared by: Courtney A. Ryan (M & T Bank's "Lien Release" Department 
employee) 
Signer: Meghan Halpin (alleged employee of M & T Bank's "Assignment" department), 
signing as Assistant Secretary of Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. as nomi
nee for defunct Countrywide Home Loans, Inc., using MERS's "Metro Detective Agency" 
address in Danville, lllinois address in an attempt to self-assign the Mortgage ONLY! 
Notary: Bess E. Katerinsky (New York Commission expired 01-12-2013) 
Witnesses: None (two may be required in Florida) 
Issues: Establishment of pattern of alleged perjury under Florida RICO statutes, involving 
known suspect Florida foreclosure mill law firms and M & T Bank. Misrepresentative of 
M & T Bank's self-assignment of the Mortgage using MERS to give it apparent standing in 
the case. Meghan Halpin appears to be an Assistant Vice President for M & T Bank when 
she is Assistant Secretary of MERS. Multiple titles is a marker of document manufactur
ing. The undated endorsement-in-blank stamp says nothing about WHY or WHO assumed 
the Note if Halpin indeed endorsed it for the purposes of Assignment to an unknown party, 
not present here. 

Given the self-assignment issues and other items previously discussed, it puzzled the Exam
iner as to why the Defendant gave into a Consent Final Judgment, signed by Judge Pleus. 
The property was sold and Certificate of Title issued. The self-assignment certainly is mis
representative and constitutes intent to deprive the property owner of her property, proba
ble cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535; unauthorized practice of law, 
and certainly Florida RICO issues. 

Case No. 113: Nationstar Mortgage LLC v. Rosita Karla Castllnera eta/ (2012 CA 3383 MF) 

The Complaint was fiJ.ed by Albertelli Law's Lindsay Ann Wickham (FBN 87091) on July 
19, 2012. Wickham also appears to have filed the Notice of Lis Pendens on 07-27-2012 as 
CFN#2012110829. The iiling of this Complaint appears to be based on the following As
signment of Mortgage: 

CFN#2012084635, recorded by presentment on 06-04-2012 
Return to: Nationstar Mortgage, LLC 
C/0 NTC 2100 Alt. 19 North, Palm Harbor, FL 34683 
Document Prepared by: Erika Lance, Nationwide Title Clearing ("NTC") employee in 
Palm Harbor, Florida. 
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Signor: Brady Niehaus (allegedly a Nationstar employee), claiming to be an Assistant Sec
retary of MERS as nominee for Suntrust Mortgage, Inc. as Assignor (using MERS's Flint, 
Michigan post office box address), attempting to assign ONLY the Mortgage (and not the 
Note) to itself, as Assignee (using Nationstar Mortgage's Lewisville, Texas address). The 
signer has absolutely no knowledge of the facts and is NOT an officer of MERS or Sun
trust, but an employee paid by Nationstar to assign the Mortgage to his employer. 
Notary: Keri Jonker (Texas Notary Commission expired) 
Witnesses: Sam Maurer, (second name and signature illegible); both alleged Nationstar 
employees. 

There are multiple issues with this Assignment of Mortgage, to wit: 

(1) Nationstar's Trey Cook, who claims to be an Assistant Secretary (there are no 
"officers" in an LLC, only "members'') claims that Fannie Mae owns the Note; 

(2) lfNationstar assigned itself the Mortgage, then Fannie Mae only holds the Note 
and NOT BOTH the Note and Mortgage; thus, it appears that neither party can 
foreclose because neither has standing. 

There are other issues with this Complaint, to wit: 

(1) The MERS-originated Mortgage, executed in favor ofSuntrust Mortgage, Inc., 
does NOT have a MIN listed on it; 

(2) The Note, also executed in favor of Suntrust Mortgage, Inc. has two indorse 
men t-in-blank stamps affixed to them; both undated; one of them marked "VOID"; 

(3) It appears that the signature of Deborah P. Ellis, who is purported to be Vice 
President of Suntrust Mortgage, Inc. (on the stamp) did not sign the stamp; thus, 
it is highly likely that she did not know WHO and WHEN it was affixed to the Note 
below the Borrower's signature; and 

(4) There is no endorsement to Fannie Mae found in any of the documents; thus, 
with Nationstar claiming to own the rights and interests in the Mortgage, but not 
possessing the Note with the right to enforce, appears to negate the standing. 

Despite the filing of the Notice of Voluntary Dismissal and Release of Lis Pendens by Al
bertelli Law's Matthew Bronkema (FBN 91329), the Examiner has reason to believe that 
probable cause exists: 
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(1) Against Nationstar Mortgage LLC for self-assigning a recorded document with 
the intent to deprive Rosita Karla Castanera of her property, in violation of Florida 
Criminal Code§ 817.535; 

(2) Against N ationstar Mortgage LLC, Erika Lance and NTC for conspiring to 
commit perjury in the manufacture of a document purporting to assign only the 
Mortgage to Nationstar, using false and misrepresentative information contained 
within the document, knowing said information was false, in violation of the 
Florida RICO statutes; and for committing unauthorized practice of law in the 
process; and 

(3) Against Albertelli Law and its attorneys for the intentional commission of fraud 
on the court for its reliance on a manufactured assignment with the intent to commit 
a violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535. 

Case No. 114: U.S. Bank, N.A., as Trustee for ResidentialAssetSecurities Corporation, 
Home Equity Mortgage Asset-Backed Pass-Through Certificates, Series 
2006-KS3 v. Sofia M. Gue"ero et al (2014 CA 1346 MF) 

This case appears to have been initiated on May 12, 2014 by Can Guner (FBN 20931) of the 
Robertson, Anschutz & Schneid, P.L. ("RA&S") law firm. Gunner appears to have filed this 
Complaint on behalf of fellow RA&S attorney Jonathan Meisels (FBN 29235). It further ap
pears that the Notice of Lis Pendens filed by someone at RA&S on May 9, 2014 was not signed 
by the filing attorney and the Court Clerk sent notice to the firm about it. 

Not only are there three (3) suspect assignments involved with the intent to deprive the home
owner of her property, but there is no recorded Notice of Lis Pendens in this case, which would 
be construed to mean that the ''world was not given constructive notice" as the case continued to 
proceed up through the Clerk's Notice of Default. Shortly after that filing (on July 16, 2014), 
based on what appears to be defective service of process, the course of events that took place in 
the case between September 9, 2014 and November 24,2014 found the case to be closed. 

The following are the serious case issues which should be investigated further: 

(1) The alleged "ALLONGE", which appears to be self-servicing between the 
Servicer (Ocwen) and the trust Plaintiff, was attached in the wrong place, not 
directly behind the promissory Note ("Note''); 
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(2) The alleged "ALLONGE TO NOTE" was also tued and placed BEHIND 
the PREPAYMENT RIDER TO NOTE, where it doesn't belong. This is a 
key sign of document manufacturing and fraud on the court; 

(3) All of the allonges and endorsements placed within BOTH drafts were 
undated, thus ineffective in proving the date of transfer of the Note; 

(4) The Allonge, attached behind the ALLONGE TO NOTE, appears to be a 
duplicate effort to assign the Note to a specific REMIC. All have borders 
around them, which is another sign of document manufacturing; 

(5) The first Assignment of Mortgage appears to be fraudulent, to wit: 

CFN#2006279716, recorded by presentment on 11-27-2006 
Document Prepared by: M. Snelgrove (an employee of Residential Funding Company, 
LLC, which is NOT the original Lender). 
Signer: M. Snelgrove, who claims to be an Assistant Secretary of MERS as nominee for 
GMFS, LLC, in Hennepin County, Minnesota, assigning BOTH the Mortgage and Note to 
"MERS" c/o of its Vienna, VA address. 
Notary: Cindy K. Krider (Minnesota Notary Commission Expired 01-31-2008) 
Witnesses: None 

This assignment is suspect for the following reasons: 

(a.) MERS is an electronic database that is bankruptcy-remote; 
therefore, assigning the mortgage and Note to it violates its corporate 
charter and by-laws, especially when the language states: "the under
signed hereby grants, assigns and transfers ... all beneficial interest 
under that certain Mortgage ... together with the Note ••• the money 
due and to become due thereon with interest."; 

(b.) This Assignment appears to have been relied upon by the attorneys, 
and represents an apparent breach of the Mortgage contract, because a 
nominee is an agent, not the beneficial "owner" of all interest in the Note 
and Mortgage. 

Thus, U.S. Recordings, Inc. appears to have conspired with MERS and Residential Fund
ing Company, LLC to manufacture a document which becomes case precedent in this mat
ter, probable cause to carry this scenario forward as suspect for violation of Florida Crimi
nal Code § 817.535 and perjury under the Florida RICO statutes, when coupled with the 
following Assignments of Mortgage: 
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CFN#2013002269, recorded by presentment on 01-07-2013 
Document Prepared by: Lisa Vang (Indecomm Global Services employee and known ro
bosigner). 
Signer: Bao Cindy Fang (Minnesota Notary Public and known Indecomm Global Services 
employee), claiming to be Assistant Secretary of MERS, in an attempt to assign the Mort
gage (ONLY) into the REMIC Plaintiff trust, using MERS as a nominee for the original 
lender. 
Notary: Pang Mee Yang (Minnesota Notary Commission Expires 01-31-2017; the same as 
the signer's notary commission). These two persons appear to have been retained as sign
ing document notaries for a known third-party document manufacturing mill that caters to 
MERS and the mortgage industry. 
Witnesses: Kia Vang, Donna Kurzhal (also Indecomm Global Services employees) 
Issues: The Closing Date of this Trust REMIC was March 29, 2006 (see additional docu
ment information provided by the Examiner and made a part of this case file); thus, the 
transfer is in contravention of New York trust law and is void. The Examiner reviewing 
this case file believes that this was an attempt at correcting the previous Assignment of 
Mortgage issued by the same group in 2006, which brings the case forward for probable 
cause under the statutory period of Florida Criminal Code§ 817.535 and Florida RICO 
violations. 

CNF#2014020269, electronically recorded on 02-12-2014 
Document Prepared by: Fred Jeune (alleged Ocwen employee) 
Signer: Leticia N. Arias (alleged Ocwen employee), claiming to be an Assistant Secretary of 
MERS as nominee for GMFS, LLC in a "corrective" attempt assign the Mortgage into the 
REMIC Plaintiff trust. 
Notary: Christopher Kelley (Florida Notary Commission No. EE 851683; still active) 
Witnesses: Jason Ayers, Aisha Ansar 
Issues: Besides the scribbled signatures, which are markers of robosigning, the Ocwen sign
ing team used MERS's Flint, Michigan address to misrepresent the original lender's ad
dress and further utilizes Ocwen's West Palm Beach address as the address for the U. S. 
Bank trust, ONLY assigning the Mortgage and not the Note, in another apparent feeble at
tempt to pledge the Mortgage into the trust, which is still CLOSED, nearly eight (8) years 
AFTER the fact. 

(6) Further, the Motion for Default contains a fraudulent Affidavit of Service, to wit: 

(a.) The document refers to Mr. Guerrero's "race" as "BRN" (meaning 
BROWN). There is no such "race" as a "BROWN" race; and 

(b.) The document is signed by Process Server #1279639 in New York, 
who served the Defendants with a defective Notice of Lis Pendens, 
unsigned by the Attorney for the Plaintiff. 
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Thus, in complete disregard for proper case filing, RA&S 's counsel proceeded to effectuate 
process and continued to file documents in the case, including what it claimed was the original 
Note and Mortgage, despite the defective and apparently fraudulent and misrepresentative as
signments, wherein if any specific party was subpoenaed to testify as to the facts contained on 
that document, would (as the Examiner believes) be able to attest to any of the said facts and any 
knowledge regarding any of the assignments proffered within the chain of title. It is apparent 
that a Court would find multiple reasons to have dismissed this case, which appears to have 
"magically" been closed during its pendency. 

Based on the fad that the fll'st Assignment of Mortgage was directed firmly at MERS, it 
makes an obvious and apparent statement that MERSCORP member employees executing 
these Assignments: 

(1) did not have attorney supervision; 

(2) may be liable for unauthorized practice oflaw; and 

(3) violated MERS policies when MERS own dictates and mandates clearly say that 
MERS cannot own anything. This complete disregard, which in tum brings false 
and misrepresentative information into the real property records, constitutes 
probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817 .535; Florida RICO 
violations for perjury; and for unauthorized practice of law, also a felony under 
Florida Statutes. 

Further, the apparent fraud on the Court with the misplacement of the ALLONGES, is suspect 
for petjury within the Complaint, wherein, in reliance on the recorded Assignments clearly in
volve RA&S and its counsel acting on behalf of the Plaintiff, equally liable for the same viola
tions in the attempted deprivation of the homeowner's property. 

Case No. 115: The Bank of New York MeUon F.KA The Bank of New York as Successor 
Trustee for JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Trustee for Novastllr Mortgage 
Funding Trust, Series 2006-3 Novastar Home Equity Loan Asset-Backed 
Certificates, Series 2006-3 v. Winston A. Chedda et aJ (2013 CA 1436 MF) 

This case file appears to have been initiated on April 11, 2013 by Dane E. Leitner (FBN 91181) 
on behalf of the West Palm Beach, Florida law firm of Ward, Damon, Posner, Peterson & Bleau, 
P. L. ("Ward"; its apparent first entry into this forensic examination). Leitner also appears to 
have filed a Notice of Lis Pendens and caused it to be recorded on 04-23-2013 as 
CFN#20 13064256. 

368 of412 



COMPREHENSIVE FORENSIC EXAMINATION OF THE 
REALPROPERTYRECORDSOFOSCEOLACOUNTY,FLORIDA 

There do not appear to be any recorded assignments involved in this case; however, there are 
forensic issues with the court case file that appear to warrant investigation for probable cause of 
Florida RICO violations and well as potential issues for fraud on the Court. The case was offi
cially CLOSED on August 9, 2013. 

The multiple issues with this case are discussed below: 

(1) The Verification of the Complaint was signed by alleged Ocwen Loan Servicing, 
LLC ("Ocwen") employee Shakiva Ruff, who purports within the document to be a 
Contract Management Coordinator for Ocwen, yet the Verification is not dated; 

(2) The attorney's signature (if in fact that is the attorney's signature), is not dated; 

(3) The sole endorsement underneath the Borrower's signature on Page 5 of 5 of the 
promissory note ("Note") has two signatures underneath it (David A. Pazgan, who 
purports to be a Senior Vice President; and Larry E. Barage, who purports to be a 
Vice President) of two persons claiming to be officers of the originating Lender. 
Underneath the "Pay to the order of:" portion of the endorsement, there appears 
to have been inserted a different type font face rubber stamp bearing the phrase, 
"JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee*". Below the endorsement, there is another 
phrase of rubber-stamped lettering that states, "JPMorgan Chase Bank, National 
Association as Trustee for the Novastar Home Equity Loan Asset-Bank Certificates, 
Series" and in handwriting next to the end of the stamp is written "2006-3"; 

(4) This endorsement stamp is suspect for specific manufacture because it does not 
match the named Plaintiff in this proceeding; 

(5) Further, the endorsement stamp is undated; thus, there is no effective date of 
transfer known to anyone and no recorded Assignment of Mortgage to verify the 
actual transfer of the Note into the trust; 

(6) None of the pages of the Note appear to have been "two-hole punched" as is 
customarily seen in promissory notes that have been archived; 

(7) Following the Note Exhibit "A" is attached a two-hole punched "Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement" ("Agreement"), dated October 1, 2006, by and among 
Chase Manhattan Bank USA, N .A., JPMorgan Trust Company, N .A. and JPMorgan 
Chase Bank, N.A., each a wholly-owned subsidiary of JPM (which is not fully identi 
fled here) and the Bank of New York, a wholly-owned subsidiary ofBNY (which is 
also not fully identified here); 
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(8) The submitted copy, which is attached to this Exhibit, is barely legible; however, 
it does appear that the document refers to the "Governing Law" being based in "the 
State of New York", which appears to open up the New York venue for examination 
of all laws applicable to this transfer under Florida Rules of Evidence, including but 
not limited to, New York Estates, Powers & Trusts § 7-2.4; 

(9) Whether unintentional or not, four (4) pages of undated signatures follow this 
Agreement, one signature per page; thus, this document also becomes suspect for 
manufacture because the pages contained herein are not numbered as are the pages 
of the actual Agreement itself, which make up three (3) pages; 

(10) The Closing Date of this trust REMIC was June 29,2006, yet the Agreement 
was not generated until October 1, 2006, which further fails to prove that all of 
the parties to the trust were established by the time the trust pool closed; 

(11) If the attached Assignment and Assumption Agreement was not intended to 
have been viewed by the Court, it would not have been attached as part of Exhibit 
"A", which makes the entire pleading appear to be a sham pleading, because the 
indorsement stamp is misspelled as the Plaintiff did not issue "Asset-Bank 
Certificates", but rather "Asset-Backed Certificates". Clearly, there was 
enough room on the 3-line stamp to put "Asset-Backed Certificates", but it 
becomes obvious here that someone was not paying attention to what they were 
doing during the manufacture process and whoever ordered it apparently didn't 
care whether the stamp matched the Plaintiff's official title; 

(12) The Examiner does not believe that the party affixing the Stamp had actual 
knowledge of the transfer of the Note into the trust pool; otherwise, this person 
would not only have caught the "scrivener's error" in the rubber stamp, they 
would have corrected it; 

(13) This also further appears to indicate that since there was handwriting wherein 
the "Series Number" could be affixed, that this stamp was intended to be applied 
to numerous Notes throughout the alleged securitization process; 

(14) There are 65 Limited Power of Attorney ("LPOA ") recorded instruments listed 
in the real property records of Osceola County, Florida, wherein the Bank of New 
York and/or the Bank of New York Mellon are Grantors of "attorney-in-fact" status 
to Ocwen Loan Servicing, LLC. The applicable LPOA that specifically denotes 
the "attorney-in-fact" status, executed on May 21, 2012 by Gerard F. Facendola 
and Andrew M. Cooper before Tsilya Zabataya (New York Notary Commission# 
01ZU6233191, which expires on 12-27-2014) lists this "trust vehicle as an "Asset
Backed" trust and not an "Asset-Bank" trust; 
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(15) The LPOA, attached as part of this case file, was frrst recorded in Palm Beach 
County, Florida as CFN#20120206842 on 05-24-2012, and then electronically 
recorded in the real property records of Osceola County, Florida on 11-29-2012 as 
CFN#2012177664, conveniently prior to the filing of this undated Complaint; 

(16) The LPOA however, also claims that the mortgage loans in the alleged pool 
were "insured", which could be construed to mean that third-party payments 
may have been appHed to this Borrower's loan balance upon any alleged default; 

(17) Paragraphs 6 and 7 also specifically refer to recorded Assignments of the 
"related Mortgage Note", when in fact, there is no recorded Assignment of the 
Mortgage by Ocwen PRIOR TO the commencement of this proceeding; 

(18) Since this document is based on an Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
that post-dates the Closing Date of the trust pool as well as the governing rules 
and regulations promulgated by the PooHng and Servicing Agreement ("PSA"), 
there is reason to beHeve that: (a.) the Borrower's loan may have suffered a "credit 
event", wherein third-party insurance proceeds paid all or part of any alleged 
loan balance; and (b.) the effective date of transfer, being unproven, appears to 
contravene New York Estates, Powers & Trusts § 7-2.4 and is thus void; and 

(19) The recorded LPOA is only good for one (1) year from the date of execution, 
which was May 21, 2012, which would be construed to mean that during the 
pendency of this action, the LPOA expired and Ocwen no longer had any authority 
to act as the representative to carry out any of the wishes of Bank of New York 
Mellon as an "independent contractor", which further makes the undated 
Complaint appear to be more of an intended fraud on the Court by all of the 
parties named therein, to give the named Plaintiff Trustee standing to pursue a 
Complaint of Foreclosure. 

Thus, despite the Defendant counsel's Motion to Dismiss the Complaint, the Plaintiff did so vol
untarily, which appears to be in conjunction with the fact that the Defendant in fact retained 
counsel to pursue discovery in this case, which could have revealed the preceding suspect issues. 
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Case No. 116: The Bank of New York Mellon FIKIA The Bank of New York, as Trustee for the 
Holders of the Certificates, First Horizon Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates 
Series FHAMS 2005-AA9, by First Horizon Home Loans, a Division of 
Tennessee Bank, N.A., Master Servicer, in its Capacity as Agent for the Trustee 
under the Pooling and Servicing Agreement v. Adnan Mirza et al (2009 CA 
0115MF) 

CASE NOTES: This case was originally styled as First Horizon Home Loans, a division of 
First Tennessee Bank, N.A., successor in interest by merger to First Horizon Home Loan Cor
poration v. Adnan Mirza et al (with the same case number). This case presents the Examin
er with multiple Notices of Lis Pendens and a change in Party Plaintiff, which appear to 
coincide with servicer-related manufactured assignments of mortgage. 

The original Complaint appears to have been initiated on January 6, 2009 and the pendency of 
the case ended shortly after the initial forensic examination concluded in Osceola County, Flor
ida (July 25, 2014). As of the issuance of this report, the Certificate of Title had not yet been is
sued. This case ended up being protracted to the point where the Examiner believes that the De
fendant consented to the Final Judgment of Foreclosure because of lack of funds or attorney 
knowledge/wherewithal to litigate this case. 

Upon the filing of the Complaint, the initial Notice ofLis Pendens was caused to be recorded by 
Amy McGrotty (FBN 316938), who also appears to have filed the original Complaint. It appears 
that McGrotty was representing her own professional association ("P.A.") at the time of filing. 
The original Notice of Lis Pendens was recorded on 01-13-2009 as CFN#2009006386. There do 
not appear to have been any recorded Assignments of Mortgage present in the real property 
records at the time this case was commenced. Further, the original Complaint filed by McGrotty 
was self-authenticated (by the attorney) and not by the Plaintiff or the Plaintiff's representative. 

Also at the time of the filing of the Original Complaint, the Defendants' caption did not include 
the former banking entity named in the final captioning of this case. Further, there was no Note 
Allonge or endorsement present anywhere in the Original Complaint, which the Examiner be
lieves did not (at that time) constitute "bearer paper". The MERS-originated Mortgage was also 
attached as an Exhibit, which was executed in favor of First Horizon Home Loan Corporation. 
The fact that MERS is involved automatically meant that the Note was going to be securitized 
and that this was not disclosed to the Borrower at the time of the loan transaction. 

On May 27, 2009 another Notice of Filing occurred in the Court records, which appeared to have 
been generated by Amy McGrotty. This filing contains matters of a suspicious nature, as the 
Note appears to have an additional page added into it that contains no two-hole punch markings 
as the other pages have, which the Examiner believes is suspect for document manufacturing. 
The extra page contains an indorsement-in-blank from First Horizon Home Loan Corporation, 
allegedly signed by one "B. J. Cooley", who claims to be its Vice President. 
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The mere fact this document contains an endorsement that could have easily been placed onto 
the final page of the Note underneath the Borrower's signature but wasn't, constitutes suspect 
issues for fraud on the Court. Still, there is no recorded Assignment of Mortgage at this point in 
the pendency of the case. 

On June 23, 2010, Michelle Garcia Gilbert (FBN 549452) filed an Amended Notice of Lis Pen
dens on behalf of the Gilbert McGrotty Group, P.A. (in an apparent merger of the two persons) 
and caused it to be recorded by presentment on 06-29-2010 as CFN#2010093729. On July 2, 
2010, Gilbert filed an Amended Complaint. This time the Complaint was still self-authenticated 
and the Note was still unaffected by indorsement. It appears that the original count to re-estab
lish lost instruments was eliminated from the Amended Complaint. Further, on July 7, 2010, 
Gilbert and McGrotty both appear to have had a hand in recording another Amended Notice of 
Lis Pendens as CFN#2010096968. 

The next set of issues occurred with the following Assignments of Mortgage being recorded in 
the official property records of Osceola County, Florida, following each other in sequence: 

CFN#2012086208, recorded by presentment on 06-06-2012 
Return To: Nationstar Mortgage LLC 
c/o NTC, 2100 Alt. 19 North, Palm Harbor, FL 34683 
Signor: Brady Niehaus (believed to be a Nationstar employee) claiming to be an Assistant 
Secretary of MERS as a standalone Assignor (using MERS's Flint, Michigan address to 
hide the real Assignor), in an attempt to assign only the Mortgage to First Horizon Home 
Loans in Irving, Texas as Assignee. 
Notary: Keri Jonker (Texas Notary Commission Expired on 10-24-2012) 
Witnesses: Sam Maurer, Judah Hargobook (?, second name illegible; also believed to be 
Nationstar employees and not employees of MERS) 

CFN#2012094325, recorded by presentment on 06-22-2012 
Return to: Alex Choi (Preparer) Nationstar Mortgage, LLC (350 Highland Drive, 
Lewisville, Texas 75067) 
Signor: Michael Kelso(?; name illegible in both signature area and notarial execution; al
legedly a Nationstar employee), claiming to be an Assistant Secretary of MERS as nominee 
for First Horizon Home Loan Corporation as Assignor (using MERS's office address of 
1818 Library Street, Suite 300, Reston, Vrrginia 20190), attempting to assign ONLY the 
Mortgage (and not the Note) to First Horizon Home Loans, a division of First Tennessee 
Bank, N.A., successor in interest by merger to First Horizon Home Loan Corporation, as 
Assignee. 
Notary: Brady James Niehaus (Texas Notary Commission expires on 09-01-2015; active) 
Witnesses: Sam Maurer, Amber Oharani (both alleged Nationstar employees) 
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CFN#2012094325, recorded by presentment on 07-23-2012 
Return to: Binot Chhetri (Preparer) Nationstar Mortgage, LLC (350 ffighland Drive, 
Lewisville, Texas 75067) 
Signor: Judah Hargabook (?;name illegible in both signature area and notarial execution; 
allegedly a Nationstar employee), claiming to be an Assistant Secretary of First Horizon 
Home Loans, a division of First Tennessee Bank, N .A., successor in interest by merger to 
First Horizon Home Loan Corporation, by Nationstar Mortgage LLC as its attorney-in
fact; attempting to assign ONLY the Mortgage (and not the Note) to First Horizon Home 
Loans, a division of First Tennessee Bank, N.A., successor in inters by merger to a 
CLOSED First Horizon 2005-AA9 REMIC trust, as Assignee. 
Notary: Andrew Patrick Kane (Texas Notary Commission expires on 06-23-2015; active) 
Witnesses: Vishni Desai, Matt Johnstone {both alleged Nationstar employees) 
NOTE: This Assignment follows the previous Nationstar Assignment in the chain of title. 

The day following the fmal recorded assignment (July 24, 2012), Lisa N. Wysong (FBN 521671) 
filed a "Motion for Substitution of Party Plaintiff and Amend Case Style", to change the name to 
the current Plaintiff trust shown at the heading of this case review, which Judge Miller granted on 
July 25, 2102, despite the stacking of the Assignments of Mortgage and questionable positioning 
of the indorsement-in-blank with no document heading as mandated under U.C.C. 3-302(2). 

On the previous day (July 24, 2012) the parties agreed to a Consent Final Judgment of Foreclo
sure, which Judge Robert J. Pleus, Jr. appears to have signed off on. The property was ordered 
sold on Monday, December 1, 2014 and a Certificate of Sale and Certificate of Title are expected 
to be issued following the sale of the property. 

Based on the fact that the Assignments and the suspect added page to the "Note" appear in short 
sequence, the Examiner believes that this was a coordinated effort among the parties involved in 
the proceeding, manufactured with the intent to deprive the homeowner of his property, despite 
the suspicion he may not have been in default at all (unknown to him) and thus, there is probable 
cause for violation ofFlorida Criminal Code§ 817.535 and the Florida RICO statutes. 

Because the employees of the servicer were probably NOT supervised by an attorney during the 
manufacture and execution of the Assignments, it is likely that unauthorized practice of law is 
also suspect. 
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Case No. 117: The Bank of New York Mellon FIKIA The Bank of New York, as Trustee for the 
Certijicateholders of the CWALT, Inc., Alternative Loan Trust 2006-0A6 
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2006-0A6 v. Noemy Pantoja et al 
(2010 CA 0369 MF) 

This case begins with the execution of a MERS-originated Mortgage and HELOC, both executed 
by Aida L. Pinero (a single woman), who ended up passing away before the two Mortgages and 
their respective Notes had been satisfied; thus, the initiation of this case by Sarah M. Barbaccia 
(FBN 30043) on behalf of the Aldridge Connors, LLP law finn. Due to apparent investigative 
work prior to the suit, the alleged lender and its counsel determined that the current listed Defen
dant was the deceased's personal representative; thus, the apparent reason for her being listed as 
such in the styling of this case. It further appears that Barbaccia also caused the Notice of Lis 
Pendens to be filed on 04-29-2014 as CFN#2014058948. The Verified Complaint contains the 
signature and identification of one "Cynthia Wallace" who claims to be Second Assistant Vice 
President of Specialized Loan Servicing, LLC ("SLS"), its attorney-in-fact (for the trust 
REMIC). Despite the fact that in Florida, loan servicers have been authorized to bring the suit 
on behalf of the real party in interest, there are multiple issues with this Complaint, to wit: 

(1) The case was idedApril17, 2014. There is no recorded Limited Power of 
Attorney ("LPOA") until October 23, 2014, when the rrrst of a series of four (4) 
LPOA's virtually identical in content, were recorded in what appears to be an 
"overkill" by parties involved in the foreclosure proceeding, seeking to give SLS 
attorney-in-fact status to file foreclosure paperwork, to wit: 

(a.) On 10-23-2014, it appears that Alexander P. Almazan, P.A. caused 
the rrrst LPOA to be recorded as CFN#2014157894, after having had 
it previously recorded in Leon and Charlotte Counties in Florida, 
respectively; 

(b.) On 10-28-2014, it appears that Town Title & Trust LLC caused 
the second LPOA to be recorded as CFN#2014160158, after having had 
it previously recorded in Pasco County, Florida; 

(c.) On 11-05-2014, it appears that an unidentified party caused 
the third LPOA to be recorded as CFN#2014164061, after having had 
it previously recorded in Broward and Pinellas Counties in Florida, 
respectively; and 

(d.) On 11-14-2014, it appears that an unidentified party caused 
the fourth LPOA to be recorded as CFN#2014157894, after having had 
it previously recorded in Miami-Dade County, Florida; 
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(2) All of these documents, which appear to contain the trust REMIC's name on an 
attached "Schedule 1", are all marked "EXHIBIT D", which would lead the 
Examiner to believe that these LPOA's were specifically "manufactured" as an 
"Exhibit" in anticipation of it being entered as such into a court case filing to give 
SLS the appearance of having power to foreclose on Bank of New York Mellon's 
behalf. There is a concern however with the filing of these documents, claiming the 
Trustee actually owns the Borrower's Note: 

CFN#2011148300, electronically recorded on 10-24-2011 
Document Prepared by: Aida Duenas (known Bank of America, N.A. employee and known 
robosigner) 
Signers: Cynthia Santos and Jane Martorana (also known Bank of America, N.A. employ
ees and known robosigners), claiming to be Assistant Secretaries of MERS as a standalone 
Assignor, attempting to convey BOTH the Mortgage and Note into the Plaintiff REMIC 
trust, which was already closed by then and could not accept it. 
Notary: Barbara J. Gibbs (California Notary Commission# 1864186; expired; signed un
der penalty of perjury under California law) 
Witnesses: Richard Paz, Bud Kamyabi (also known Bank of America, N.A. employees and 
known robosigners) 

(a.) The Closing Date of the REMIC trust was May 17, 2006. An Assignment 
of Mortgage affecting the Mortgage and Note was not recorded until over (5) 
years later; 

(b.) The foregoing Assignment utilizes a forbidden, alleged MERS address 
in Ocala, Florida in contradiction of MERS' own policies that this address 
was not to be used after December 10, 2006. Still, Bank of America, N.A. 
employees appear to disregard this fact because they can, according to 
MERS's own policies and rules; 

(c.) MERS does not own the Note, therefore it cannot convey what it does 
not own; thus, the Assignment is suspect as a recording containing false 
and misrepresentative information to be relied upon by Plaintiff's counsel 
for the purpose of depriving the homeowner of her property, probable cause 
for violation of Florida Criminal Code§ 817.535; and 

(d.) Because this Assignment was electronically recorded, probable cause 
also exists for violation of 18 USC 1343 (wire fraud); 

(3) The Second Mortgage (HELOC) loan was also assigned by a different group of 
Bank of America, N.A. alleged robosigners: 
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CFN#2012065899, electronically recorded on 05-02-2012 
Document Prepared by: Unknown employee of Bank of America, N.A. 
Signers: Juan Soto and Ebony Clayborn (alleged Bank of America, N.A. employees), claim
ing to be Assistant Secretaries of MERS as a standalone Assignor, attempting to convey 
BOTH the Mortgage and Note into the Defendant REMIC trust, which was already closed 
by then and could not accept it. The Closing Date of the REMIC was March 30, 2006. 
Notary: Emmanuel Oluwole Adetula (California Notary Commission #1831707; expired; 
signed under penalty of perjury under California law) 
Witnesses: Lance Cohen, Aaron Hawkes (also alleged Bank of America, N.A. employees) 

(a.) The foregoing Assignment utilizes a misrepresentative MERS address 
in Danville, Illinois which actually belongs to Metro Detective Agency; 

(b.) Specific language from this trust REMIC's own pooling and servicing 
agreement ("PSA") states: For each of these mortgage loans, MERS® serves 
as a mortgagee of record on the mortgage solely as a nominee in an 
administrative capacity on behalf of the owner trustee, and does not have any 
interest in that mortgage loan; thus, 

(c.) Since MERS does not have an interest in the Note, it cannot convey what 
it does not own; thus, the Assignment is suspect as a recording containing 
false and misrepresentative information to be relied upon by Defendant's 
counsel (Amina M. McNeil; FBN 67239), from the Gladstone Law Group, 
P.A., who on September 9, 2014, filed a Motion claiming an interest in the 
property and further asking that any surplus funds (after sale) be awarded 
to said REMIC trust; 

(d.) It is also highly likely that due to the nature of the way REMIC trusts 
operate, this loan may have been paid in whole or in part due to third-party 
payments (insurance, credit default swap payments, etc.), and would thus 
appear to contain false and misrepresentative information, relied upon by 
Defendant REMIC trust's counsel for the purpose of depriving the 
homeowner of her property, probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal 
Code§ 817.535; and 

(e.) Because this Assignment was electronically recorded, probable cause 
also exists for violation of 18 USC 1343 (wire fraud); and 

(4) Because all of these parties appear to be acting in concert with one another in an 
apparent attempt to defraud the homeowner, probable cause also exists for violation 
of Florida RICO statutes; 
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(5) Due to the fact that both of these Assignments were executed under penalty of 
perjury, likely without attorney supervision, probable cause also exists for 
unauthorized practice oflaw involving the drafting of, execution of and recordation 
of both of these Assignments of Mortgage; 

( 6) The originating lender of both of these loans withdrew its right to do business in 
the State of Florida on June 12, 2012. Up until that time, it could have generated 
BOTH ofthe foregoing Assignments of Mortgage; and 

(7) The Note attached an Exhibit to the Complaint is suspect for document 
manufacturing, as it does not comport to U. C. C. 3-302(2) as there is ample 
room for multiple endorsements under the Borrower's signature, which makes 
this case suspect for fraud on the Court. 

There does not appear to have been any activity in the case past November 19, 2014 (Status 
Hearing). It is the Examiner's belief that if this case is allowed to continue, given the recording 
of the series of "Exhibit D" style LPOA's and the two alleged false and misrepresentative As
signments of Mortgage (and Note) by Bank of America employees, the Court will likely ignore 
all of these issues and issue a Final Summary Judgment for Foreclosure on behalf of the REMIC. 

It further appears that prior to commencement of this case, Westgate Town Center Owners Asso
ciation, Inc. recorded an Assignment of Bid on 2013088344 on 06-04-2013, as the apparent re
sult of a foreclosure sale of what appears to be an attached Exhibit "A" for the property involved 
in this proceeding. This foreclosure appears to be unrelated to the case at bar. 

Case No. 118: Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB v. Robert V. Chapman et al (2009 CA 6287 MF) 

This rather protracted case dates back to June 5, 2009 and continued up until February 12, 2014, 
when an actual Assignment of Mortgage was filed under questionable circumstances (preceded 
by a Limited Power of Attorney, "LPOA" recordation as explained below) and thus raises sus
pect concerns since it appears to have been coordinated through Orion Financial Group, Inc., a 
known third-party document manufacturing plant out of Southlake, Texas. 

The case begins with the execution of a Note and Mortgage in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 
which was referenced in the Complaint as CFN#2006003755, recorded on 01-05-2006. The orig
inal Mortgage does not appear to have anything to do with MERS. From indications within the 
original "Mortgage Foreclosure Complaint", a Loan Modification Agreement was attached as an 
Exhibit that was recorded as CFN#2008157790 on 10-01-2008, which then-Florida Default Law 
Group ("FDLG") has alleged the Defendants are in default on. 
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The Complaint however, does appear to have a "Count II - RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF NOTE" 
contained within it, apparently self-verified by FDLG attorney Jacqueline F. Kuyk (FBN 52730; 
who also recorded a Notice of Lis Pendens on 06-09-2009 as CFN#2009089298), asserts that the 
"Plaintiff does not presently have a copy of the Note", yet it appears that a 4-page Note was at
tached to the Complaint, contradicting the language contained within the pleading. The Note is 
unendorsed and does not appears to have been transferred to any other party, which would indi
cate that Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. should be the Plaintiff here and NOT Lehman Brothers Bank, 
FSB. From indications within the court case file, it appears that Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. may 
have originated this Mortgage but that it is now servicing the Note for Lehman Brothers Bank, 
FSB. 

Further, on September 16, 2010, it appears that Kuyk filed a Notice of Voluntary Dismissal of 
Count II of the Complaint (Docket #28); followed by a ''Notice of Filing" (Docket #29) which 
appears to contain a copy of the lost Note. This copy is maintained to be the original (absent 
forensic testing of the paper and application of an indorsement-in-blank stamp from Wells Fargo 
Bank, N.A., which appears to have been "expanded" to fill the page, portrayed as if this were the 
"original" and not a computer-manipulated copy of the Note, rubber-stamp signed by Joan M. 
Mills, who claims to be Vice President of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. On September 13, 2011, 
Judge Miller issued a Final Summary Judgment of Foreclosure, which was filed for record on 
09-23-2011 as CFN#2011133582 and set a sale date for January 5, 2012. While this case appears 
to have seemingly been outside of the "target period" of this examination, a subsequent Assign
ment of Mortgage (discussed below) was filed, preceded by an "all-too-convenient" Limited 
Power of Attorney ("LPOA"). 

The pendency of the case continued to November 6, 2012, when Judge Pleus issued an Order 
dismissing the case without prejudice (Docket #63 and #65, in its recorded version) was filed for 
record as CFN#2012176078 on 11-28-2012, which is now within the target range ofthis exami
nation. There was no apparent rationale provided by the Court as to why the case was dismissed, 
other than the possibility that there was no recorded evidence that the Mortgage had transferred 
with the Note, which in the form presented to the Court, was undated; thus, not able to prove 
date of effective transfer of the Note. The Examiner's attention now focuses on the set of docu
ments filed for record in 2014, to wit: 

CFN#2014020352, recorded by presentment on 02-12-2014 
NOTE: The document preparer is unknown; however, it appears that Orion Financial 
Group, Inc. of Southlake, Texas may have directed its manufacture as the document was 
returned to it after it was first recorded in Miami-Dade County, Florida and then in Osceo
la County, Florida's real property records. 
Signer: Sally Nancoz, who claims to be an "Authorized Signatory" for Lehman Brothers 
Holdings, Inc. (which was NOT the Plaintiff in this case), giving Little AJAX, LLC as "Pur
chaser", in connection with a "Mortgage Loan Sale and Warranties Agreement" (not at
tached), as of September 13, 2013, showing an attached "Schedule 1" of loans purchased. 
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Notary: Lauren M. Oliver (New York Notary Commission No. 010L6270735; commission 
active until10-22-2016) 
Witnesses: John Griffin, Michelle Rosolinsky 
There are multiple issues with this Limited Power of Attorney ("LPOA"), to wit: 

(1) It is dated September 6, 2013 (execution date), while it references a point in time 
in the future (September 13, 2013; the actual date of transfer), in an apparent 
attempt to give credence to the Assignment of Mortgage being med in sequence 
with this document, which is marked "RECORD FIRST", put there by someone for 
the purposes of "legitimacy" to effectuate an Assignment; 

(2) It is not understood WHY Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. could sell something 
to Little AJAX LLC and then grant it power of attorney to do something, when 
Little AJAX LLC actually purchased the loans. Why then would a power of 
attorney be necessary at all other than to reasonably conduct due diligence prior to 
the sale taking place? 

(3) It would appear that any due diligence required on Little AJAX LLC's part 
would not require a Limited Power of Attorney if it actually owned the loans 
claimed to be sold to it by Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. (who did not attach 
proof of ownership, which still hangs in the balance in this transaction); 

(4) Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB was the Plaintiff in this case, which lends suspicion 
regarding this set of recorded transactions, claiming that Lehman Brothers 
Holdings, Inc. (which is NOT the same entity as Lehman Brothers Bank, FSB, which 
filed for bankruptcy September 15, 2008; its North American banking entities and 
its New York headquarters were purchased by Barclays [England]), could even be 
a Plaintiff in this instance if Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. actually owned the 
Note, which is included in Schedule 1 of the attached Exhibit to the recorded 
document; and 

(5) Further, the way the LPOA was put together with the notarial execution on an 
entirely separate page lends suspicion that this "Page 3" could have been randomly 
placed on multiple LPOA's issued by this entity, NOT specific to this transaction, as 
it shows a "blank line" where the number "6" was written. It is possible that 
multiple transactions occurred involving this same "Page 3", which was simply 
copied and attached to whatever applicable transaction was to be processed. 

The LPOA only appears to give those directly involved within Little AJAX LLC and no 
other listed entities, the right to conduct any business on behalf of Lehman Brothers Hold
ings, LLC; this LPOA expired six months AFTER it was issued, as there is no evidence it 
was reflled regarding the following document: 
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CFN#2014020353, recorded by presentment on 02-12-2014 (in succession with the previous 
document). This document was prepared by M. E. Wileman of Orion Financial Group, Inc. 
(a known third-party document mill in Texas), to be signed by entities in Washington 
County, Oregon (where Seterus, Inc. and other corporate entities are located (Beaverton)). 
Signer: Irving Potter, who claims to be an Authorized Agent for Gregory Funding, LLC, as 
Manager, executing an Assignment of Mortgage on January 28, 2014 from Lehman Broth
ers Holdings, Inc. (NOT the Plaintiff here), to U. S. Bank, N.A. as Trustee for a AJAX 
Mortgage Loan Trust 2013-C REMIC (apparently a privately-registered entity; 144 or 144-
A trust vehicle), whose Closing Date cannot be identified; however, it is suspect that the 
Closing Date was in 2013 and that the trust (unless otherwise proven, which is not the case 
here) could not have accepted this Assignment without violating its own Pooling and Ser
vicing Agreement ("PSA"), which would contravene New York trust law and would be void. 
Notary: Kathie A. Garcia (Oregon Notary Commission No. 922707; active untilll-26-2017) 
Witnesses: Ivy Draughon, Dan Izoita 
There are multiple issues with this recorded Assignment, to wit: 

(1) If Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. actually owned the Note, then Lehman 
Brothers Bank, FSB (with no recorded proof prior to commencing a foreclosure) 
could not have been the real party in interest in the proceeding, which at best, 
would be fraud on the Court due to the misrepresentations of Plaintiff's counsel; 

(2) Little AJAX LLC, claims to be an Attorney-in-Fact for Lehman Brothers 
Holdings, Inc., which is why the document was signed in Washington County, 
Oregon and not in New York, where Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. may be; 

(3) The problem here is, "Who is Gregory Funding LLC?" There is no mention 
of their right to sign any document as purported in the LPOA, where this entity 
is NOT mentioned; 

(4) What is Little AJAX LLC doing purchasing and placing allegedly defaulted 
loans into a trust vehicle, despite any case activity indicating that a loan 
modification agreement had taken place, using an entity that was not named in 
the Limited Power of Attorney? and 

(5) There is no recorded LPOA from Little AJAX LLC to Gregory Funding, LLC 
(in the real property records of Osceola County, Florida) giving Gregory Funding 
LLC the right to transact any business on Little AJAX's behalf, indicating that 
Gregory Funding LLC may be the servicer of this loan. Again, since the case was 
apparently closed, should a future claimed default occur, this set of documents 
becomes suspect for: (a.) potentially clouding the homeowner's chain of title; and 
(b.) becomes an issue of probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code 
§ 817.535 and Florida RICO statutes. 
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At best, this case presents itself as offering probable cause for suspect document manufacture to 
indicate alleged fraud on the Court by Plaintiff's counsel by perjury. Second, the documents that 
were manufactured under the direction of Orion Financial Group, Inc. were highly likely not at
torney supervised, which would then constitute probable cause for unauthorized practice of law. 
Until this entity attempts another foreclosure, would the§ 817.535 and RICO claims be statutori
ly viable. 

Case No. 119: Pontus Investment Portfolio I, LLC, v. Martin Hernandez et al (2012 CA 2610 
MF) 

CASE NOTES: There is a non-jury trial scheduled in this case for January 28, 2015 (this 
case is still OPEN). Both complete sets of documents from the Osceola County real proper
ty records and the circuit court files of Osceola County were reviewed as part of this report. 
There were multiple suspect assignments tiled as part of this case, which appear to have 
been relied on by counsel in attempting to establish standing on the part of the Plaintiff. 

This case is highly irregular in that the attorneys (and their non-attorney subordinates) who ap
pear to have NOT paid attention to the location of the subject property they are trying to fore
close on did in fact INITIALLY FILED SUIT IN THE WRONG COUNTY. This clearly indi
cates to the Examiner herein that Dumas & McPhail, LLC did NOT supervise their paralegal 
staff, who the Examiner believes actually prepared the Complaint. This in of itself should have 
been reason enough to sanction this law fmn for its blatant mistake, as the Mortgage clearly (on 
Page 1) notes the physical location of the subject property, along with the Clerk's file stamp, as 
having been recorded in Osceola County, Florida. The filing also lends credence to the Examin
er's belief that if this blatant error occurred, then the entire file merits suspect attention for other 
issues, as discussed below. 

The initial Notice of Lis Pendens appears to have been filed in Orange County, Florida on De
cember 20,2011 by Kent D. McPhail (FBN 852767) of Dumas & McPhail, LLC, showing Case 
No. 2011 CA 17197 (Orange County, Florida). It further appears that all ofthe Orange County 
documents were later assigned the current case file after it was discovered that the Plaintiff's 
counsel filed the case in the wrong county. Aside from the alleged document abuses discussed in 
Section One of this Report, this would be the first foreclosure case misfield in the wrong county 
shown in this Report. The Assignment of Mortgage discussed herein also showed "Osceola 
County" stamped on it in the upper, right-hand comer of the page. It is disconcerting at best to 
even speculate how a law fmn, allegedly supervised by attorneys, could conduct its business in 
this fashion and allow its paralegal staff to apparently run amok of the system and abuse process 
in this fashion, not to mention the Court's valuable time and resources in processing a case that 
clearly did not belong in Orange County, Florida. Clearly, this case did not merit claims of "ex
cusable neglect" considering the fact the law firm relied on Osceola County Assignments. 
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EXAMINER'S NOTES: Prior to the discussion of the recorded Assignments, it should also 
be noted that, in conjunction with the misid.ed case in Orange County, Florida, that there is 
no recorded Notice of Lis Pendens in Osceola County, Florida; thus, it appears that the 
Plaintiff is proceeding and has created over a 2-year case pendency without properly notic
ing all interested claimants. The Examiner herein deems the case is facially defective be
cause constructive notice has not been provided to all concerned parties regarding the fore
closure action taken and that this proceeding is, for all intents and purposes, unperfected. 

CFN#2010189951, first recorded by presentment on 12-20-2010 
Document Prepared by: Teri Augustine (appears to be an employee of Optimal Asset Man
agement LLC), which is not listed in full on this document. This information appears to be 
misrepresentative in that it includes a "Deal Name: P&C Loans; Loan #1137), which is not 
the Plaintiff in this action. 
Signer: Nicholas L. Press, who claims to be a "Managing Member" for Clark Partners, 
LLC, as Assignor, attempting to assign BOTH the Mortgage and Note to the Plaintiff, nam
ing Household Finance Corporation III as the "Original Lender". 
Notary: Michelle D. Tice (California Notary Commission# 1872328; commission expired 
on 11-26-2013) 
Witnesses: Linda R. DeLong, Sharon K. Siron 
There are multiple issues with this Assignment, to wit: 

(1) On the first page of this assignment there is a rubber stamp marking that says 
"RECORD lst". This would then be construed to mean that something was to be 
"Recorded 2nd" (meaning the following Assignment), which was not the case here. 
In fact, it appears the recordings were mismarked with the rubber stamp, as the 
following Assignment (CFN#2010189952) should have been recorded before this 
Assignment was recorded; 

(2) To correct the "mistake" with this Assignment of Mortgage, it was then 
re-recorded as CFN#2011141611 on 10-11-2011 in an apparent attempt to "correct" 
the mistake, without attributing the Assignment as being "corrective"; 

(3) As a result of the misfiling, there is now a suspect issue with the documents 
as to their relevant manufacturing in an attempt to create standing, as the original 
Note and Mortgage appear to have been created on 10-09-2006; and 

( 4) Thus it would appear that these Assignments of Mortgages were created with the 
sole purpose to create the illusion (when compared with the proffered Complaint) 
for the Court that they were the legal owner and holder of the Borrower's Note and 
Mortgage vested with the rights to foreclose on the Property. 
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CFN#2010189952, recorded by presentment on 12-20-2010 
Document Prepared by: Teri Augustine (appears to be an employee of Optimal Asset Man
agement LLC), which is not listed in full on this document. This information appears to be 
misrepresentative in that it includes a "Deal Name: P&C Loans; Loan #1137), which is not 
the Plaintiff in this action. 
Signer: M. R. Gold, who claims to be BOTH "Vice President" AND "Assistant 
Secretary" (as if one title wasn't enough) for the Original Lender, Household Finance Cor
poration m, as Assignor, attempting to assign BOTH the Mortgage and Note to the Plain
tiff, naming Clark Partners, LLC as the Assignee. 
Notary: Alfred J. Marsh (Virginia Notary Commission# 274373; commission expired on 
05-31-2011) 
Witnesses: Charnell Evans, Sheryl Yao 

There are multiple issues with this Assignment, to wit: 

(1) On the first page of this assignment there is a robber stamp marking that says 
"Record 2nd". This would then be construed to mean that something was to be 
"RECORDED 1st" (meaning the preceding Assignment), which was not the case 
here. In fact, it appears the recordings were mismarked with the rubber stamp, as 
the preceding Assignment (CFN#2010189951) should have been recorded AFTER 
this Assignment was recorded; 

(2) To correct the "mistake" with this Assignment of Mortgage, it was then 
re-recorded as CFN#2011141611 on 10-11-2011 in an apparent attempt to "correct" 
the mistake, without attributing the Assignment as being "corrective"; 

(3) As a result of the misfiling, there is now a suspect issue with the documents 
as to their relevant manufacturing in an attempt to create standing, as the original 
Note and Mortgage appear to have been created on 10-09-2006; and 

( 4) The alleged signature of "M. R. Gold" does not appear to be that of the real 
signer; thus, the Examiner recommends this individual's handwriting samples 
be taken and analyzed (compared) with the original recorded signature of this 
individual; 

(5) The Florida Department of State's Corporations Section lists the address of 
the Assignor as "26525 N. Riverwoods Blvd., Mettawa, IL 60045", with its 
Registered Agent shown as CT Corporation System in Plantation, FL. There is 
no listing of the noted address within the Assignment (Orlando, FL address); and 
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(6) The corporation's Florida address is in Orlando, yet M.R. Gold is allegedly in 
the Commonwealth ofVrrginia. The Assignor's business registration in Florida 
is still showing ACTIVE, originating in Delaware; thus, "M. R. Gold", who is NOT 
listed among the officers with the Florida Secretary of State, would then have to 
prove which "officer" he is because this Assignment is not self-authenticating, 
especially considering that it was prepared by someone in Novato, California that 
appears to be a document manufacturer that also prepared the other Assignment 
filed out of sequence in this set of recorded assignments. 

It further appears that the alleged Plaintiff's counsel relied on the re-recorded Assignment 
of Mortgage as (CFN#2011141611) in its attempt to foreclose on the subject property. M. 
R. Gold may also be a robosigner (not the actual M. R. Gold) which may also purport sur
rogate signing in this instance. Nicholas L. Press may also be misrepresenting his real au
thority in the proffered Assignment relied upon by the Plaintiff. 

The most damaging issues presented here as a result of the misflled recording of these As
signments is the dates that they were executed, to wit: 

(1) The first Assignment, which should have been recorded second in sequence but 
wasn't, was executed on November 19, 2010, but backdated to be effective on August 
18, 2010; 

(2) The second Assignment, which should have been recorded frrst in sequence but 
wasn't, was executed on November 17,2010, but backdated to be effective on 
September 16,2010. 

Even if the second Assignment were properly recorded, constructive notice would have 
caused the backdating of the Assignments to become suspect, not only because the backdat
ing of any Assignment to "be effective as of'' makes the Assignment suspect for document 
manufacturing, but also creates suspect issues as to the actual effective date of transfer of 
the Note (as the actual NOTE was not placed within the original Complaint). 

Further, the fact that BOTH of the notarial executions were placed on a separate page 
when there clearly was enough room to generate the executions on the first page is a mark
er of document manufacturing, which the Examiner construes to mean that the notary did 
not actually witness the physical signature of the signor to the document. 

Thus, there appear to be multiple issues of false and misrepresentative statements con
tained in these recorded documents which create probable cause for violations of Florida 
Criminal Code§ 817.535 and Florida RICO statutes involving the suspect manufacture of 
these almost identical third-party document mill recordings. 
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Further, there are multiple issues within the Complaint itself, to wit: 

(1) The Complaint implies that the Defendants executed a Note and Mortgage on 
August 25, 2005, when in fact, the Exhibits (A & B) both state otherwise; 

(2) Exhibit "A" is not even the Note but a Truth-in-Lending Disclosure, which 
does not prove the right of anyone to enforce any foreclosure, based on the 
first glance at this document; 

(3) The Plaintiff's Ex-Parte Motion for Leave to f:ale an Amended Complaint and 
Amended Notice of Lis Pendens appears to have been granted by the Judge Pleus 
on January 3, 2013; however, there was no original Notice of Lis Pendens filed 
with the Circuit Court of Osceola County, Florida (ONLY Orange County, FL); 
thus, the Motion to ask the Court to f:ale an Amended Notice of Lis Pendens appears 
improper. There was never a Notice of Lis Pendens recorded with the real property 
records in Osceola County, Florida since the transfer of the case two years earlier; 

(4) The Notice of Filing of the Original Note (with the Court) on January 22, 2013 
did NOT contain the original NOTE, as proffered, but only the Mortgage and the 
two Assignments that it appears Plaintiff's counsel is attempting to intimate are 
valid; 

(5) The Original Complaint contains an FDCPA-related Notice, proffered as Exhibit 
"D", which is NOT the law fl.l'm that is pursuing foreclosure in the case at bar; thus, 
there is no explanation as to its inclusion in the Amended Complaint if Dumas & 
McPhail did not notice the Defendants of their representation of the Plaintiff; 

(6) Plaintiff's Exhibit "A" in the Amended Complaint still does not appear to be a 
signed promissory Note, but rather a "Loan Agreement" containing Truth-in-Lend 
ing Disclosures, more of a Financing Statement and not the original Note, which 
leads the Examiner to believe that Plaintiff's counsel (or its paralegal staff) cannot 
ascertain the difference between a Truth-in-Lending Disclosure and a promissory 
Note; 

(7) The signer of the Assignment (CFN#2011141611) is Nicholas L. Press, who claims 
to be Managing Member of Clark Partners, LLC. The signer of the Verification is 
Michael Press, who claims to be Managing Member of Pontus RMO Advisors, LLC, 
which is NOT the Plaintiff, Pontus Investment Portfolio I, LLC. These are clearly 
two differently-named LLC's; thus, the real "Managing Member" signing for the 
Plaintiff is not truly representing the Plaintiff, which further adds suspicion to the 
filing of this Complaint; and 
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(8) There are additional suspect issues with this case, to wit: 

(a.) In the Plaintiff's response to Defendant's Affirmative Defenses, 
an Exhibit "E" is attached, which claims to be a "Corrective Assignment 
of Mortgage" with "RECORD 2ND" on it; 

(b.) The document appears to have been manufactured by the same 
company that manufactured the first two assignments that were botched 
in the recording process, yet this Assignment, which clearly states the 
location of the property as being in Kissimmee, Osceola County, Florida, 
was in fact recorded in Charlotte County, Florida as CFN#2229040; thus, 
not only was the recordation improper, there is no constructive notice in 
Osceola County, Florida regarding this Assignment, which as submitted, 
appears facially defective; 

(c.) Because Plaintiff's counsel was engaged by the Plaintiff during the 
pendency of these proceedings, the Examiner believes this Assignment was 
filed under the direction of the Plaintiff's law firm, who still appears to fail 
to ascertain what County in Florida they are litigating in; 

(d.) The previous "EXIDBIT D", which is the Florida Foreclosure Attorneys, 
PLLC January 19,2011 FDCPANotice to the Defendants still appears to fail 
because Florida Foreclosure Attorneys, PLLC is not representing the 
Plaintiff in this litigation; and 

(e.) The Affidavit submitted as Exhibit "G" fails because there is no recorded 
Limited Power of Attorney filed in the real property records of Osceola 
County, Florida giving Pontus Capital, LLC the right to file an Affidavit in 
Support of Plaintiff's Standing, which appears to the Examiner to be another 
fatally flawed attempt to "manufacture standing" to foreclose. 

On May 7, 2014, Judge Pleus denied the Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Final Judgment of 
Foreclosure without prejudice. On June 27, 2014, Plaintiff's Counsel (who to this date still 
has NOT filed a Notice of Lis Pendens in this case), filed an Affidavit that appears to have 
been manufactured by Florida Foreclosure Attorneys, PLLC's ("FFA") Melody Maxwell, 
who claims to be an Operations Director for that fmn, who claims to have personal knowl
edge of the FFA's business records. 

This Affidavit contains all of the particular "markers" of previously-noted Affidavits that 
appear to prove nothing as far as this affiant having any knowledge because of the vague
ness and ambiguity with which the document was drafted: 
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(1) In Paragraph 2, the term "on or around January 19, 2011" and the use of a 
former attorney's name (who should have been the party claiming to be the 
affiant herein), Brian Klingel, would thus represent hearsay information because 
Maxwell is NOT the attorney; and 

(2) Maxwell relies on business records and files that she did NOT personally create 
or have anything to do with the creation and filing of; thus, her knowledge again 
relies on the hearsay information of others. 

This Affidavit was acknowledged by Douglas Greer (Florida Notary Commission No. EE 
137236, which is still active until 12-23-2015), in Pinellas County, Florida, who is only at
testing to the Affiant's signature but not to the knowledge possessed by the Affiant as to 
whether the statements are true or simply hearsay. The fact remains however, that this Af
fidavit appears to have been drafted at the request of Plaintiff's counsel with the intent to 
continue its apparent charade on the Court to prove standing. Still, no original Note has 
been tendered for review. 

Further, based on the issues surrounding the filings since the inception of the case, there are 
clear concerns regarding the violations of Florida Bar Rules regarding attorney supervision 
of non-lawyers and paralegals who are producing work product, which appears to be seri
ously lacking in this case. 

Case No. 120: WeUs Fargo Bank, N.A. v. Grizel Bidot et al (2012 CA 4505 MF) 

This litigation began with the filing of a Complaint that was allegedly verified by a "Vice 
President of Loan Documentation" for Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. However, because the Prin
cipal Address listed on the declaration does not comport with the listed address registered 
with the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations (420 Montgomery Street, 
San Francisco, CA 94163), but instead shows an old World Savings address in San Antonio, 
Texas (that was converted to a Wells Fargo address in 2009, the personal knowledge of any 
of the declarant's facts are at best questionable. Further research showed that a REMIC 
was the alleged real party in interest. That too, is highly questionable. 

R. Xavier Celestin (FBN 611 09) of the Aldridge Connors, LLP law firm filed the Complaint with 
the Court on September 28, 2012, along with the Notice of Lis Pendens, which appears to have 
been filed as CFN#2012141570 on 10-01-2012. It further appears that on February 20, 2013, the 
Defendant's attorney filed a Suggestion of Bankruptcy and on or aboutApril17, 2014, the Court 
issued an Order of Stay and instructed the Clerk to close the file. The Debtor was granted a 
Chapter 7 discharge on May 31, 20 13 by the Bankruptcy Court of the Middle District of Florida. 
Judge Pleus granted a Motion to re-open the case on October 2, 2014. 
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The Examiner finds multiple issues with the Complaint, to wit: 

(1) The Mortgage and Note were purportedly executed on 03-16-2004 and filed for 
record as CFN#2004063230 on 04-01-2004, in favor of World Savings Bank, FSB; 

(2) There are no recorded Assignments of Mortgage supporting this foreclosure 
action. On or about October 2006, Wachovia Corporation, including Wachovia 
Bank and Wachovia Home Mortgage, acquired Golden West Financial Corporation, 
including World Savings Bank, FSB. However no records of the exact assets 
included in the acquisition were published; therefore, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
successors by merger to Wells Fargo Bank Southwest, N.A. F!K/A Wachovia 
Mortgage, FSB F!K/A World savings Bank, FSB should have been validated 
prior to filing this Complaint, as Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., N.A. could not have 
acquired what Wachovia Corporation F!K/A World Savings Bank, FSB did 
not own; 

(3) Page 6 of 6 of the proffered Note within the Complaint contains no dated 
indorsements-in-blank; thus, the Examiner deems the Note to be insufficient as 
to effective date of transfer to the alleged Plaintiff; 

(4) According to a Notice filed by the Defendant to the Court on 10-24-2012, the 
Defendant appears to claim that (based on unknown information sources) "the 
Seller, Wells Fargo Assets Security Corporation sold the loan to the Issuing Entity, 
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2004-K Trust"; further claiming that 
the Plaintiff"is acting as a servicer of the note and has no legal standing", of which 
there appears to be no attached documentation to support his statements; thus, the 
Examiner believes that there may be some outside communication received by the 
Defendant to indicate that such a claimant in interest exists, yet again, this is 
unverified; and 

(5) Further, It is likely that only the residential mortgage rights (the right to collect 
payments on Borrower's loan) were included in the World Savings acquisition by 
Wachovia and then in the subsequent Wachovia merger with Wells Fargo. 
The records of the specific Mortgages and Notes included in the acquisitions and 
mergers have not been made public. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. could not have 
acquired what Wachovia Corporation F!K/A World Savings Bank, FSB no longer 
owned; thus, the statements made in the Verification by Crystal Trevino would 
constitute probable cause for perjury, in violation of the Florida RICO statutes, 
acting in concert with the law firm to appear to have "manufactured" standing. 

As to the civil aspects of this case, it further appears the Defendant's title is clouded by the 
claims of the alleged current Plaintiff in the case at bar (alleged slander of title). 
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Case No. 121: Citimortgage, Inc., as Successor by Merger to ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, 
Inc. v. Juanita M. Briceno et al (2011 CA 3658 MF) 

This case appears to have been initiated by Consuegra law firm attorney Jennifer A. Gar
ner (FBN 89040) on 10-19-2011, who also recorded the Notice of Lis Pendens on 10-27-2011 
as CFN#2011150164. There appears to be several defendants involved in the case, includ
ing the Internal Revenue Service, the State of Florida (regarding criminal penalties involv
ing the homeowner; it appears that personal identifying information was attached to this 
Complaint and exposed in the public record [fmgerprints]) and Osceola County, Florida 
(regarding a property tax lien). It further appears that the verification was signed by 
Howard Kaid III (who claims to be a "Document Control Officer"); however, Kaid does 
not indicate WHO he is employed by, thus, it is unknown whether Kaid is employed by the 
Plaintiff. 

It further appears that a Note and Mortgage was executed in favor of Monticello Bank on 
09-12-2002 and the Mortgage was recorded on 10-03-2002 as CFN#2002166750. On the 
Note attached to the Complaint, there appears to be an restrictive endorsement dated the 
same day as the execution of the Note in favor of ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, Inc., 
signed by Monticello Bank's Linda Z. Bowen, which appears to make Monticello Bank a 
table-funded lender and not the lender actually issuing the funds. There appears to be a 
second indorsement-in-blank signed by Margaret A. Bezy (who claims to be Vice President 
of ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, Inc.), which is undated; thus, the effective date of trans
fer is unknown. There appears to have been an Assignment of Mortgage recorded in suc
cession to the recordation of the Mortgage, to wit: 

CFN#2002166751, recorded by presentment on 10-03-2002 
Document Prepared by: Mortgage 2000, Inc. (1400 Oak St., Suite C, Kissimmee, FL 34741) 
Signer: Linda Z. Bowen (who is the same signer as on the indorsement), signing as Vice 
President of Monticello Bank. 
Notary: Leesa A. Billotte (Georgia Notary Public Commission expired 12-08-2008) 
Witnesses: Megan D. Thompson 
Issues: It does not appear that the signature on the Assignment matches the signature on 
the restrictive endorsement on the Note. Surrogate signing is suspect. 

The Fair Debt Collection Practices Act notice appears to be a custom, fill-in-the-blank tem
plate form from the Consuegra law firm that is attached as a standard "Exhibit X". There 
is no dated evidence to indicate that this form was served on the Defendant homeowner. 
The foregoing Assignment appears to be the only assignment of record in this case. It fur
ther appears that Nathan A. Kelvy (FBN 96815) also assisted in document preparation in 
this case. On December 5, 2012, it appears that the Plaintiff's representative submitted an 
Affidavit, which there are issues with, to wit: 
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(1) There is nothing in the document that purports to demonstrate HOW the 
Plaintiff acquired the Note and Mortgage, despite the presence of "bearer paper"; 

(2) The Affiant appears to rely on the records created by others and likely has no 
personal knowledge of any of the facts she is attesting to; thus, the Affiant more than 
likely could not verify (if examined) the amounts she claims are due and owing and 
specifically how those fees accrued; 

(3) There is no specific evidence as to when the Borrower was notified of the 
authority of the Plaintiff to accelerate the Note which comports to Paragraph 22 
of the Mortgage; 

(4) There does not appear to be any evidence of third-party payments applied to 
the loan from default sources such as credit default swaps and other insurance 
payments; and 

(5) It only appears that the first five (5) pages of the 10 pages contained within the 
recorded Mortgage have been attached to this Affidavit (incomplete exhibit). 

It appears that Judge Miller signed a Final Summary Judgment of Foreclosure on 
02-28-2013. The Consuegra attorneys participating in this scenario appear to include 
Brenda Jean (FBN 89812); Allison D. Thompson (FBN 36981); Pavithra Raj (FBN 93091); 
Gamer and Kelvy, supra; Francisco Colon, Jr. (FBN 381098); Josh D. Donnelly (FBN 
64788); Aaron W. Saoud (FBN 96124); Peter G. Fowler (FBN 723908); Danielle M. Glenn 
(FBN 109466); and Benjamin A. Ewing (FBN 72678). It further appears that the Defen
dant retained counsel, post-judgment and that there was an effort to resolve the matter 
through loss mitigation. A Suggestion of Bankruptcy appears to have been filed with the 
Court on 03-12-2014 and an automatic stay was entered. During the pendency of this case, 
it appears that two separate sales of the property were vacated; the most recent sale date of 
December 15,2014 is pending. 

As the Examiner suspected, as evidenced by prior research, many of the Citimortgage loans 
were sold to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac"); however, 
there is no proof of transfer or assignment to Freddie Mac up until May 5, 2014, when the 
Plaintiff assigned its bid to Freddie Mac, now claiming that it is the "investor" in this loan, 
there being no consideration being tendered. It is widely known that Freddie Mac claims 
that it does not loan money; that it is simply a guarantor of loans. Further, it is also evident 
according to IRS Publication 938 that Freddie Mac administers multiple REMIC trusts, 
which are registered with the SEC and it is highly likely that the money for the Borrower's 
loan came from investors inside of one of those unidentified REMIC trusts. Citimortgage 
thus appears to be the interim funding lender, while the transfer to Freddie Mac appears to 
hide the real parties in interest in this proceeding. 
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It is also highly likely that any relevant paperwork involving Freddie Mac's participation 
in the Borrower's loan is concealed within the Collateral Loan File and deliberately NOT 
assigned, which would also violate the REMIC's Closing Date; thus, effective transfer to 
the Freddie Mac trust would have also violated New York trust law. 

It further appears that the Assignment of Bid to Freddie Mac has not been recorded to 
date, which would indicate to the Examiner that Freddie Mac is instructing the parties to 
withhold disclosure until the actual sale takes place. This makes the entire issue suspect for 
fraud on the court and constitutes probable cause for Florida RICO violations. 

Case No. 122: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. v. Gildardo Rivas et al (2010 CA 7245 MF) 

This case was filed on 12-23-2010 by Robert L. Wunker (FBN 176998) of the Rutherford 
Mulhall, P.A. law firm (making its frrst appearance within this report); who also appears to 
have filed the Notice of Lis Pendens on 12-28-2010 as CFN#2010193727. There are multi
ple issues with this Complaint, to wit: 

(1) The PlaintitT's law fum attached letters to the Complaint from the Office of 
Thrift Supervision ("OTS") and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 
("OCC"), respectively, explaining the merger of World Savings Bank, FSB into 
Wachovia Mortgage, FSB (dated 11-19-2007); and from Wachovia Mortgage, FSB 
to Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.; however, these letters say nothing of the actual transfer 
of the Borrower's loan from World Savings to Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.; 

(2) Wells Fargo Bank filed suit against Wachovia Bank (196 Fed. Appx. 246; U. S. 
5th App. Ct; 2006) in which the former sued the latter for failing to deliver all of the 
loan and origination documents, which goes to the argument that despite the claims 
within the attached letters, there is no guarantee that Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. ended 
up with the Borrower's loan paperwork; 

(3) Paragraph 7 of the Complaint claims that the note and mortgage "have not been 
assigned", yet there is no demonstrated proof as to how the note and mortgage made 
its way through the successive mergers and acquisitions; 

(4) A copy of the alleged six-page subprime, "Pick-a-Pay Note" was also attached to 
the Complaint; however, there is no indorsement-in-blank from World Savings to 
anyone else and thus, the Note as it is presented does not constitute "bearer paper"; 
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(5) The Verification is signed by a "Vice President of Loan Documentation", 
which makes the Complaint suspect because from previous experience with Wells 
Fargo-related litigation, everyone is a "Vice President of Loan Documentation", 
even Florida attorneys who have no authority to sign as such, even under a Limited 
Power of Attorney; and 

(6) Because there was no recorded Assignment of Mortgage up until the last of the 
case's pendency, in an apparent attempt to assign the Mortgage to a closed Truman 
2013 SC4 Title Trust REMIC in Irvine, California, the entire proceeding appears to 
have been manufactured with no affirmative proof of acquisition of the note and 
mortgage other than the self-authenticating claims of the Plaintiff. 

The suspect Assignment of Mortgage is noted below: 

CFN#2014034290, recorded by presentment on 03-11-2014 
Document Prepared by: Wells Fargo Assignment Team, Minneapolis, MN on 03-03-2014 
Signer: Shelji Dahip (who claims to be ••• a Vice President of Loan Documentation) for 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. SIB/M Wachovia Mortgage FSB F/K/A World Savings Bank, FSB, 
as Assignor, to U.S. Bank as Trustee for Truman 2013 SC4 Title Trust, whose Closing Date 
was likely in 2013 (this appears to be a privately-held trust) that could not be located with
in the SEC registry. 
Notary: Michelle Rae Petersen (Minnesota Notary Commission Expires 01-31-2017) 
Witnesses: None 
Issues: There is no evidence of transfer of the Note, just the beneficial interest in the Mort
gage. It is further highly likely that the Notary did not witness the signature being affu:ed 
by the signer. There are numerous markers of document manufacturing and robosigning. 

Kerry Green (FBN 451975) riled a notice of appearance as counsel for the Plaintiff on 
03-07-2013 on behalf of Aldridge Connors, LP, not a stranger to this Report. Counsel was 
formally substituted by Judge Miller on 03-14-2013. Shortly thereafter, it appears the De
fendant homeowner also retained counsel. On 03-19-2014, Plaintiff's counsel Andrew Sco
laro (FBN 44927) submitted an Exhibit List, which included Paragraph 4, which stated, 
"The Pooling and Servicing Agreement relating to the subject loan, including the mortgage 
loan schedule associated with the loan". This would further indicate to the Examiner that 
the Note was securitized and that Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. was apparently NOT the proper 
party to bring this action. There is not mention of the 03-11-2014 Corporate Assignment of 
Mortgage that was discussed previously, being filed as an Exhibit; thus, the Court may not 
have been informed as to the transfer of only the Mortgage (and not the Note). Suspect is
sues then would arise as to whether or not the Plaintiff had standing to do anything, since 
U.S. Bank was the alleged Trustee as of March 3, 2014, as constructively noticed in the real 
property records of Osceola County, Florida. The attached Exhibit List contains a print
out apparently generated by Rushmore Loan Management of Irvine, California. 
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Based on the Exhibit, there is no feasible way that any corporate representative from Wells 
Fargo Bank, N.A. could testify with any accuracy as to where the figures on this printout 
came from and from whence they were derived. 

Despite these issues (and the recorded Assignment tiled during the latter part of the case 
pendency, in apparent reliance of counsel), coupled with what appears to be an attorney
directed production of a Corporate Assignment of Mortgage (see the Wells Fargo Foreclo
sure Attorney Manual for reference), Judge Pleus entered summary judgment for the 
Plaintiff, who at that time (04-01-2014) had already transferred its interest to another par
ty. Also on 04-01-2014, Aldridge Connors' counsel filed what it claimed was the Original 
Note, which again, contained no endorsements to any subsequent party, including the 
REMIC trust, which had already been assigned the Mortgage on 03-03-2014; thus, the 
trust REMIC could not have properly received all of the pertinent documents by its Clos
ing Date to make the transfer effective. The property was subsequently sold to Wells Fargo 
Bank, N.A. and a Certificate of Title was issued on May 16, 2014 and filed for record as 
CFN#2014075649 on 05-30-2014. 

There is no feasible reason to explain why the Assignment was not noted in the documents 
proffered by counsel for Aldridge Connors, LP. The Assignment itself is suspect as being 
manufactured; thus, probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code§ 817.535 (as 
the property was taken through the intended use of the recorded Assignment). Further, as 
the law frrm and the Plaintiff appear to have colluded in its manufacture, there is probable 
cause for violation of Florida RICO statutes. Further, since it appears that the Wells Fargo 
Assignment Team is highly likely unsupervised by competent counsel, that there exists po
tential violations of unauthorized practice of law. Because of the construction of the case at 
bar and the failure to note the recently-recorded Assignment, there also exists potential is
sues for fraud on the Court. 

Case No. 123: BAC Home Loans Servicing, LP F/K/A Countrywide Home Loans Servicing, 
LP. v. Jodi A. Klein et al (2010 CA 1068 MF) 

This case was originally tiled by the law frrm of David J. Stern, P. A. on 02-09-2010. The 
filing signatures of the attorneys were totally illegible (if not for their Florida Bar Numbers, 
no one would know who handled the paperwork). 

It appears that Melissa Muros (FBN 638471) filed the Complaint on behalf of Maribel Diaz 
(FBN 55716). Alery Delgado (FBN 88607) appears to have filed the Notice of Lis Pendens; 
recorded by presentment on 02-12-2010 as CFN#2010020260. It further appears from the 
correspondence included with the case file that Klein was in a Chapter 13 bankruptcy in 
the Middle District of Florida. There were multiple issues with the Complaint, to wit: 
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(1) The Plaintiff appears to be servicing the loan for the real party in interest, 
who is not present in these proceedings; 

(2) The Complaint is not verified. It is signed by a scribbled signature of a 
Stem law firm attorney who highly likely cannot be a fact-based witness, as 
everything provided in this Complaint was probably based on computer
generated hearsay information and data; 

(3) It further appears that on October 23, 2012, Menina E. Cohen of Ablitt 
Scofield law firDl filed what he purported to be the original Note and Mortgage. 
The claimed Original Note has a restrictive endorsement to "Countrywide 
Document Custody Services, A Division of Treasury Bank, N.A." from the 
originating Lender (HomeBanc Mortgage Corporation), signed by Heidi Buck 
(there is an attorney for Northwest Trustee Services in Washington State named 
Heidi Buck Morrison, who could be one in the same person), who purports to 
be a "Limited Vice President"; 

(4) On the following page (following Page 3 of3 of the Note) there are three more 
indorsement stamps affixed to a page that is NOT marked ALLONGE TO NOTE. 
It appears these endorsements were manufactured and the signatures of David A. 
Spector (who claims to be Managing Director for both Countrywide Home Loans, 
Inc. AND Countrywide Home Loans Servicing, LP) appear to be markedly different 
in character and it is highly likely someone else aftlxed his signature to the 
unmarked allonge. Further, the alleged ALLONGE page has no two-hole punch 
markings as the other pages do, which is clearly a marker of document manufactur 
ing and potential fraud on the Court. 

At this juncture, it appears that the fmal endorsement was in blank, turning the Note into 
alleged "bearer paper", still undated as to effective date of transfer and still suspect. 

Further, the "Affidavit of Plaintiff's Counsel as to Fees" and "Affidavit of Plaintiff's Coun
sel as to Costs" filed on 10-23-2012 by Cohen BOTH contain a notarial execution acknowl
edged in Middlesex County, Massachusetts, when in fact, Cohen is in Florida. The notary 
claims that Cohen "personally appeared" before him, which is highly unlikely and further 
appears to constitute fraud on the Court. 

Further, the Affidavit Supporting Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Final Judgment appears 
to fail for the following reasons: 

(1) Megan Nicole Oxendale does not have claim to have personal knowledge of the 
facts contained within the Affidavit but relies on the hearsay input of others; and 
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(2) Oxendale claims to be an officer of BANA (an acronym commonly used by 
Bank of America, N .A. officers attesting as affiants to documents such as this), 
and there is she does not have personal knowledge of how all of the inspection 
fees (of $15.00 each) accrued. There is also reason to believe that a computer 
generated these fees wherein an actual inspection did not physically occur; thus, 
Oxendale's information is suspect for being manufactured and thus fraudulent. 

Again, Cohen rued three statements named "Verified Statement as to Military Status" that 
was acknowledged by the same Massachusetts Notary Public (Marc Robert Berninger) in 
Middlesex County, Massachusetts, who claimed that Cohen appeared before him when it 
was highly likely this did not happen. So far, that's five documents that appear to have 
been fraudulently manufactured by Ablitt Scofield and riled with the Court. This would 
warrant probable cause for violation of Florida's RICO statutes. 

CFN#2014029882, electronically recorded on 02-28-2014 
Signer: Elizabeth A. Ostermann (who claims to be a Vice President of Foreclosure for Car
rington Mortgage Services, LLC, Attorney-in-Fact) 
Notary: Raschelle Holmes (California Notary Commission No. 2034693; still active) 
Witnesses: None 
THIS CHAIN OF TITLE CONTAINS FRAUDULENT DOCUMENTS THAT WERE 
USED IN THE APPARENT ILLICIT TAKING OF THE REAL PROPERTY BELONG
ING TO JODI A. KLEIN (Certificate of Title issued on May 21, 2014; CFN#2014072412) 
There are multiple issues with this case, to wit: 

(1) Lender Legal Services, LLC, by virtue of the recorded document containing its 
name, is a party to this issue; 

(2) The Corporate Assignment of Mortgage was executed on January 16, 2014; 
however, it was backdated to July 12,2013, in order to make it appear as if it was 
effectuated in line with the alleged trust's ability to accept it; 

(3) The LPOA that appears to have been utilized to effectuate the authority of this 
Assignment was not recorded in the real property records of Osceola County, 
Florida until January 23, 2014 (CFN#2013010084); thus, the January 16, 2014 
authority vested with signor Elizabeth A. Ostermann was not constructively 
noticed until a week later, making the entire assignment suspect ultra vires; 

(4) It appears that an unknown party with the Law Offices of David J. Stern, P.A. 
initiated the riling of the Notice of Lis Pendens on behalf of Maribel Diaz (Florida 
Bar No. 55716; allegedly FBN88607) as CFN#2010020260, on behalf of 
BAC Home Loans Servicing LP F/K/A Countrywide Home Loans Servicing, LP 
through what appears to be a host of in-house assigned mortgage documents. 
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It appears that Scott M. Gross (FBN63921) from Ablitt-Scofield, P.C. filed a substitution of 
counsel during the pendency of the proceeding (on or about May 12, 2011). 

On January 13, 2014, it appears that Marc Jandy (FBN 91735) of Lender Legal Services, 
LLC filed a Motion to Substitute the Party Plaintiff and Amend the Case Style and it fur
ther appears that Jandy was substituted as co-counsel in the case. Eventually, it appears 
that both fmns agreed to a full substitution of Lender Legal Services, LLC as counsel in the 
case. 

It further appears as if Jandy convinced the homeowner to sign away her rights to the 
property during the pendency of the proceeding, despite the issues unknown to her with the 
suspect assignment. The Assignment of Mortgage, in effect, resulted in the apparent im
proper taking of the property because Christiana Trust: 

(a.) was taking a property whose mortgage loan was allegedly non
performing at the time the Assignment was drafted; and 

(b.) the issues involving the LPOA would have negated the Assignment. 

A Consent Final Judgment of Foreclosure was signed by Judge Pleus on March 4, 2014, 
flied for record on 03-06-2014 as CFN#2014032574, which brings this case well within the 
target range for the Forensic Examination. The filing of the Assignment appears to indi
cate probable cause for violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535, despite the outcome 
of the case due to its intended use in depriving the homeowners of their property. 
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SECTION SEVEN: FINAL SUMMARY 

This Final Summary is divided into four ( 4) specific sections, each with its own brief set of con
cerns and overviews, concluding with an attorney opinion of the overall results of this forensic 
examination. It is worthy of note here that no such joint study of corresponding records has ever 
been conducted in any county of the United States that is involved with the judicial process. By 
virtue of what we have observed here, we can safely conclude that those actions taken in non
judicial processes would virtually hide all of the factors we have specifically identified from not 
only the court, but from borrowers as well. 

Based on that assumption, it is no wonder that there is a political movement afoot to attempt 
conversion of Florida into a non-judicial State to expedite the foreclosure process. This would 
appear to serve only the banking interests operating within this State (and Oscecola County) and 
to the detriment of every property owner in Florida due to the shambles that appear evident in a 
majority of the property records due to the repeated filing of manufactured documents that con
tain apparent false and fraudulent information, designed for one purpose only: to manufacture 
proof of claim and thus standing to foreclose. It is obvious here that the recorded Assignments 
have to be "designed" to appear congruent with the alleged Note manufactures, if we are to be
lieve what the Florida Mortgage Bankers Association has stated to Judge Jennifer Bailey in the 
September, 2009 letter regarding opting to "eliminate" paper files of Notes and Mortgages. As 
will be evidenced within this Summary, one of more of the WITNESSES listed in this Report 
have personal knowledge that what is contained in this Report is not just mere speculation. 

I. Specific Causes of Action Believed to have Occurred that are Evident in this 
Examination 

As previously noted in the case studies reviewed here, there is sufficient belief that there are sus
pect issues are criminally present to assert probable cause for violations of one or more of the 
following: 

( 1) Manufacturing of documents known to contain false and misrepresentative 
statements, recorded in the public record with the intent to deprive homeowners 
of their property in violation of Florida Criminal Code § 817.535, a felony in 
the State of Florida; 

(2) Multiple actors involved in the development of said manufactured documents 
that were caused to be recorded, including but not limited to: 

(a.) the use of the United States Mails for the delivery of such 
documents to be recorded in the real property records of Osceola 
County, Florida, in violation of18 U.S.C. § 1341 (mail fraud); 
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(b.) the use of electronic recording software to further facilitate 
the recordation of documents in the public record and in the Court 
systems in Osecola County (and elsewhere in Florida), in violation 
of 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (wire fraud), from both within and without the 
State of Florida; 

and insodoing, conspired with each other to manufacture said documents without 
regard to their content, ordered by their respective management and respective 
supervisory interests to facilitate perjury in the real property records, in violation 
of the Florida Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organization (RICO) statutes, with 
more than three specific violations within a 5-year period, a felony in the State of 
Florida; 

(3) Involvement in the document manufacturing processes by foreclosure mill law 
firms' attorneys who prepared the document for signing by other attorneys within 
said foreclosing law firms or in the alternative, by employees of the servicers who 
have no personal knowledge of any of the events to which they have affixed their 
signatures, many of which are acknowledged under penalty of perjury or by claim 
that an authorized capacity exists, when such capacity is unproven or non-existent. 
These offenses are clearly violations of Florida Bar Ethics, probable cause for 
disbarment, sanctions and other criminal penalties as provided under the Florida 
Criminal Code for perjury and subornation of perjury, since the documents were 
created with the intent to be signed by someone else with little or no authority; 

(4) Due to the involvement of non-lawyers in the document creation process 
(especially in third-party document manufacturing plants as noted in this Report), 
there is probable cause for actors within these documents, in making statements 
within said documents which fmd their way into a public record by mail, wire or 
personal presentment by foreclosure mill law firm attorneys, constitute the 
unauthorized practice of law; 

(5) Acknowledgment of all documents by notaries within and without the State 
of Florida, who are officers of Florida or the respective States in which these 
notaries carry out their duties, in violation of multiple provisions ofF. S. A. 
Chapter 117, regarded herein as the commission of both misdemeanors and 
felonies, for failing to: 

(a.) physically witness the signatures of the signers involved in the 
manufacture of said documents; 

(b.) maintain a notarial journal or log book which is required in the 
State of Florida for all notarial transactions; 
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(c.) falsely swear to a document that a signer has lawfully affixed their 
signature to a document~ claiming to have full knowledge of its contents 
when in fact the signer does not possess said knowledge or knows said 
contents to be false or non-existent; and 

(d.) maintain integrity in the notarial process by refusing to rely on the 
non-legal opinions of non-attorney supervisory personnel in the process 
of repeatedly affixing their signatures and notarial seals to documents in 
robotic fashion~ with the intent to further the process of violating any one 
of the foregoing criminal codes or statutes; 

(6) With specific regard to the foreclosure law frrm attorneys filing Complaints to 
Foreclose Mortgages in Osceola County (and elsewhere in Florida), the failure to 
properly supervise and review and maintain ethical standards for the production and 
facilitation of recording of said suspect documents and court filings, in violation of 
all sections of Florida Bar Rule 4-5.3(b); and 

(7) With specific regard to the foreclosure law frrm attorneys filing Complaints to 
Foreclose Mortgages in Osceola County (both from within and without the State 
of Florida), the intent to suborn perjury or knowingly alter sworn declarations after 
they have been signed by the declarants, that are eventually filed with the Court in 
Osceola County, with the knowledge that such alterations in fact occurred, thus 
committing perjury and suborning perjury in violation of Florida Bar Rules and 
Code of Professional Conduct. 

ll. Specific Noted Patterns ofBehavior that are Suspect for Criminal Activity 

The mere fact that the lenders opted to favor use of the MERS® System, which facilitates the use 
of computer software platforms to scan original documents to image file, to be uploaded into a 
database and maintained privately without regard to the statutory processes of public recording is 
suspect for the furtherance of fraud upon the real property records and the Florida Courts as well. 

If we again are to believe that documents were "eliminated" (shredded, spoliated) for the purpos
es of convenience and easy access of computer-generated accounts of the real documents (using 
UETA principles)~ we must then assert that suspect behavior continues to thrive in the retrieval 
processes of these documents. If an original document is shredded, then what proof is there that 
the computer-generated "copy" was in fact not manipulated for such criminal purposes? 

The following patterns are suspect for criminal behavior in the manufacture of documentation 
with the intent to record or file such processes within the public record or with the court file: 
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(1) The exchange of unverifiable, computer-generated data which can be readily 
accessed by those parties which possess the same software platform, that through the 
use of a username and password, can access such information and then purport to 
rely on such unverified information as being accurate and truthful and then 
swearing to said information under penalty of perjury in court-filed verifications; 

(2) The deliberate intent to create promissory notes or to affix manufactured or 
computer-manipulated data files with the indorsement stamps or seals of persons 
known to facilitate the transfer and assignment of such notes without their knowledge 
of the actual transfers of said notes and then to portray to the court that such notes 
are "originals'' when in fact, they are known by the submitting parties to be 
manipulated with the intent to deceive the court into believing they are genuine; 

(3) The deliberate intent to create promissory notes or to affix manufactured or 
computer-manipulated data files with the indorsement stamps or seals of persons 
known to facilitate the transfer and assignment of such notes without their knowledge 
of the actual transfers of said notes and then to portray to the United States government 
that such notes are "originals" when in fact, they are known by the submitting parties to 
be manipulated with the intent to deceive the court into believing they are genuine; 

(4) The deliberate intent to create Assignments ofMortgage which contain false and 
misrepresentative information as to the specific locations of the parties engaging in 
the manufacture of such information, which is intended to be relied upon by the court 
or filed in the public record, with the intent to be relied upon by insurance companies 
or any other public official or bar-licensed attorney facilitating the use of such document 
as evidence at trial or for the purposes of issuing an insurance policy against the affected 
parcel of real property; 

( 5) The deliberate intent to create Assignments of Mortgage which contain reference 
to the transferring of the Note, known to be false and misrepresentative (because of 
the parties' use, generally by employees of the Servicer and not by any person 
with knowledge ofthe actual event oftransfer of said Note) by facilitating the use of 
Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS") to conceal the chain of title 
from the originating lender to the alleged claimant party-in-interest, when the creator 
of the document(s) knows is non-existent or in fact has no personal knowledge of the 
transfer of said Note, but is affixing their signature to documents because their supervisor 
told them to do so (either by direct order with the threat of loss of employment or by 
making assertions to said employees that what they were doing was legal) with the intent 
that the manufacture of such information was intended to be relied upon by the court 
or filed in the public record, with the intent to be relied upon by insurance companies 
or any other public official or bar-licensed attorney facilitating the use of such document 
as evidence at trial; 
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( 6) The use of multiple parties, including bar-licensed attorneys, who create such 
documents within the privacy of their offices in one part of the State of Florida, to 
be recorded in the public record in Osceola County (and elsewhere within the 
State of Florida) with the express intent to be relied upon as fact in evidence in a 
foreclosure proceeding when the attorney knows that the information in the 
document was manipulated or altered to "fit into the scheme of' the apparent 
manufacture or manipulation of the "copy" of the image file of any document relied 
upon in court proceedings or as fact in the public record, when the information 
contained therein was known to be false, altered or manipulated; including 

(a.) There is evidence of attorneys who are without the State of Florida 
also drafting and directing the execution of Assignments of Mortgage; and 

(b.) There is key evidence within the case files in the report of attached 
Assignments of Mortgage to the Complaint with the intent to bring the 
recorded document forward from a point in time prior to the target period 
with the intended use to authenticate it within the pendency of the case; 

(7) The deliberate intent by the Plaintiffs-in-interest to substitute counsel at a time 
when such acts (as noted in the foregoing suspect patterns) would become obvious 
to the Court, with the intent to "sidetrack" the Court in an attempt to obscure 
potential issues of fraud upon the Court; 

(8) The insertion of Assignments of Mortgage (created well after the filing of the 
Notice of Lis Pendens by Plaintiff's counsel) into the Court file or simultaneously, 
into the real property records of Osceola County and then into the Court file, in an 
attempt to create standing AFTER the fact; and 

(9) Direct implications from at least one WITNESS that a certain financial 
institution is directing the manufacture of promissory notes and Assignments of 
Mortgage with the intent to defraud the United States government as part of its 
settlement agreement. A working flow chart provided by this witness, describing 
the key processes (not including the manufacturing) is attached as part of this 
Report Summary as Exhibit 29 herein by reference. It should be noted that 
the last three (3) pages of this Exhibit contain suspect flow chart data relevant to 
document manufacturing and RICO issues involving parties in Florida. 

All of the foregoing processes are based upon the necessity to retrieve image data or information 
inputted into computer-generated files, which must then be manufactured or manipulated to 
make a case for standing in a foreclosure trial for the purpose of the taking of real property 
through suspect means. These behaviors appear to further the process of fraud on the Court and 
in the real property records, as a by-product of document manufacturing processes. 
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m. Implications Arising from this Forensic Examination 

As a result of the issues presented within this Report, the following implications must be 
asserted: 

A. The use of Lost Note Affidavits may contain False and Misrepresentative Information 

It is no surprise that many of the documents that became part of this forensic examination were 
targeted because of certain issues that manifested themselves, including but not limited to the 
following: 

(1) In light of the 2009 admissions made regarding the "elimination'' of notes: 

"The reason many firms file lost note counts as a standard alternative pleading in the 
complaint is because the physical document was deliberately eliminated to avoid 
confusion immediately upon its conversion to an electronic file." Comments of the 
Florida Bankers Association at 4, In re: Amendments to Rules of Civil Procedure 
and Forms for Use with Rules of Civil Procedure, No. 091460 (Fla. 2009) 
(citation omitted); 

(2) Although the number of notes that were intentionally destroyed is unclear, it seems 
obvious that in many cases firms have employed the lost note affidavit process simply to 
avoid the trouble of looking for the note. One Florida legal aid attorney estimated that 
80% of the foreclosure complaints in her locality were accompanied by lost note 
affidavits. See Bob Ivry, Banks Lose to Deadbeat Homeowners as Loans Sold in Bonds 
Vanish, BLOOMBERG (Feb. 22, 2008), www.bloomberg.com/apps/news?pid=newsarchive& 
sid=aejJZdqodTCM; 

(3) Certain types of "Lost Note Affidavits" reviewed in this report contain the same 
markers of document manufacturing that are customarily seen in "Assignments of 
Mortgage" which contain the same document manufacturing markers, such as: 

(a.) in the case of Ocwen Loan Servicing, LLC, the same notorious 16 
robosigners aka notaries public, all signing as one officer or contract manager 
of one firm or another, through the use of unproven attorney-in-fact status; and 

(b.) in the case of Ocwen Loan Servicing, LLC and Bayview Loan Servicing, 
LLC, the same boilerplate templates are repeatedly used, which do not comport 
with the case law established by the Florida courts in Section (4) below; 
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( 4) Certain case law established in the Florida courts challenges the manner in which the 
Affidavits proffered in support of the bank's claim oflost note: 

(a.) Correa v. U.S. Bank, NA., 118 So. 3d 952, 955 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 2013) 
(finding an affidavit insufficient when a foreclosure plaintiff did not prove 
the content of the note or the circumstances under which the note was 
lost); 

(b.) Beaumontv. Bank of NY. Mellon, 81 So. 3d 553, 554--55 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 
2012) (holding that a foreclosure complaint was properly dismissed when plaintiff 
failed to prove who lost the note or when it was lost, offered no proof of anyone's 
right to enforce the note when it was lost, and produced no evidence of ownership 
of the note); 

(c.) U.C.C. § 3309(a)(l)(B) (amended 2002); see also Feltus v. U.S. Bank, N.A., 
80 So. 3d 375, 377 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 2012) (quoting FLA. STAT. ANN. § 
673.3091(1)(a) (West Supp. 2014)) (holding that even under the 2002 amend
ments to U.C.C. section 3309, the complaint was insufficient because it "failed to 
allege that [the alleged holder of the note] 'was entitled to enforce the instrument 
when loss of possession occurred, or has directly or indirectly acquired ownership 
of the instrument from a person who was entitled to enforce the instrument when 
loss of possession occurred'"); and 

(5) In light of the fact that Florida was one of only 12 states that adopted the 2002 
amendments to Uniform Commercial Code Section 3-309(a)(l)(B). 

There were also certain instances where Lost Note Affidavits were used to submit "Satisfactions 
of Mortgages" or in the alternative, "Releases of Liens" when in fact, the Lost Note Affidavit 
was recorded AFTER the Satisfaction or Release was recorded; thus, confusing the "story" be
hind the chain of title (effectively clouding title by prescriptive means potentially involving the 
unauthorized practice of law) as a matter of convenience. 

B. Cases Involving MERS Confuse the Issue of Signing Authority 

Whenever the use of MERS in any Mortgage-related document is present, grave concern must 
also be presented as to the authority of the persons affixing their signatures to any Assignment of 
Mortgage (and/or Note) as to the real validity of the authority they actually possess, based on the 
assumptions that such signing authority was never accorded in the first place. This information 
was previously discussed in Section 1Wo of this Report and will not be restated here. 
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This Report asserts that until proven otherwise before a grand jury and prosecuted to the fullest 
extent of the law, that the MERS® System will continue to facilitate fraud on the real property 
records and upon the Court in foreclosures of real property in Osceola County, Florida. 

MERS and its parent, MERSCORP Holdings, Inc. are NOT public recordation systems. They 
are privately-held corporations, whose founders also consist of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. 
This would appear to place these two GSE's in the middle of the conspiracy to defraud property 
owners of Osceola County, Florida, since they both derive a profit from holding stock in the par
ent company, MERSCORP Holdings, Inc. 

Again, all entities claiming to have some limited signing authority generally have a recorded 
Limited Power of Attorney ("LPOA") on file in the real property records PRIOR TO their sign
ing acts. There are very few non-specific instances where such authority is accorded by MERS, 
to the point where such authority conferred by LPOA is negligible. Instead, this shell corpora
tion prefers to utilize a private "Signing Authority Agreement", a copy of which is attached to 
this Report as Exhibit 30, wherein an "Associate Secretary" (Timothy Renner) is giving signing 
authority not to Flagstar Bank per se, but instead to its document manufacturing vendor employ
ees, yet in Paragraph 6, it plainly states, "Member and Vendor agree to indemnify and hold harm
less (MERS and MERSCORP Holdings, Inc.) ... from all third-party claims ... or willful mis
conduct of Vendor". Even though LPOA's may state specific information containing similar 
language, at least there is recorded authority which can be verified, while in this case, unless one 
manages to obtain a Signing Agreement, authority is unknown or non-existent. MERS appears 
to prefer to self-authenticate its authority by resolution, which is only corporate opinion and does 
not appear to have any force and effect of recordation as to constructive notice. 

MERS has no idea when the users of the MERS® System manufacture and record these Assign
ments of Mortgage using MERS 's name in any form or fashion. Many of these users facilitate 
Assignments of Mortgage by claiming that MERS has an interest in promissory notes, which 
MERS does not. MERS states this in its very own policies, which its users appear to blatantly 
disregard. The mere fact that such misrepresentations continues to occur cannot continue to be 
ignored if this "system" of proper and truthful recording is to be remedied. 

MERS and its officers (in its policies and statements) make the users of the MERS® System in
demnify MERS and MERSCORP Holdings, Inc. and its successors and assigns from all liability 
connected with the use of its name, which, as evidenced here, promulgates fraud in the use of 
MERS to commit perjury in the real property records by lending impetus to making statements 
known to be false and misrepresentative. Thus, the MERS® System appears to facilitate RICO
style criminal acts which have been allowed to permeate the real property records of Osceola 
County, Florida. Despite the fact that there are Florida cases that give MERS standing to assign 
the Mortgage: 
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(1) MERSCORP Holdings, Inc. FKAMERSCORP, Inc. (owner ofthe MERS® System) 
is an unknown party to the proceeding that is never disclosed to the Borrower at closing; 

(2) That despite MERS policies mandating that users of the MERS® System follow said 
policies, in most instances, the Servicer of the Lender (or in the alternative, a third-party 
document manufacturing plant) violates MERS policies by using MERS as a "cover" in 
either name, address or both, to conceal the true party in interest, to the benefit of the 
member bank claiming standing in a foreclosure action; and 

(3) The use ofMERS to create a Mortgage in close proximity to the filing of a Complaint 
to Foreclose is highly suspect for document manufacturing and thus, perjury. 

C. Recent Court Cases in Florida Challenge Securitization and Standing Issues 

Copies of the following cases are listed as Exhibits for review based on their involvement with 
the issues of securitization and standing and are noted as follows: 

In Bank of America, N.A., Successor by Merger to BAC Home Loans Servicing, L.P., FKA 
Countrywide Home Loans Servicing, L.P. v. Linda A. Nash, eta/ (2011 CA 4389 MF; Div. 14-
K), attached to this Report as Exhibit 31 by reference, Osceola County Senior Judge Robert J. 
Pleus (who also serves as a Senior Judge in Seminole County) ruled in a Final Judgment (and 
then denied a subsequent Motion for Reconsideration filed by Plaintiff's counsel) that since 
America's Wholesale Lender (a DBA of Countrywide Home Loans, Inc.) was not registered to 
do business in the State of Florida at the time the Note and Mortgage were executed, they were 
thus invalid and of no force and effect of law. 

In Delia v. GMAC Mortgage Corporation (5D14-78; October 17, 2014), the 5th DCA reversed 
and remanded an Orange County, Florida Circuit Judge's ruling, holding that GMAC failed to 
introduce any evidence on the element of adequate protection for its lost note, citing F. S. § 
673.3091 and F. S. § 702.11(1), both 2013 Florida statutes. A copy of this case is attached to this 
Report as Exhibit 32, incorporated herein by reference. 

In Burdeshaw v. The Bank of New York Mellon, et al (1D13-2703; October 13, 2014), the 1st 
DCA reversed the Final Judgment of Foreclosure and remanded the case for dismissal based on 
inter alia that the Bank failed to establish any foundation qualifying the printout that its witness 
(Nancy Johnson of SunTrust Mortgage, Inc.) read as a business record and failed to establish any 
foundation qualifying Ms. Johnson as a records custodian or person with knowledge of the four 
elements required for the business records exception (allegations of hearsay testimony). A copy 
of this ruling is attached to this Report as Exhibit 33, incorporated herein by reference. 
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In Kiefert v. Nationstar Mortgage, LLC (1D13-5998; October 13, 2014), the 1st DCA reversed a 
Duval County Circuit Judge's ruling, holding that Nationstar's witness was only able to establish 
that its predecessor, Aurora Loan Services, LLC, was in possession of the note when the com
plaint was filed, "not that the note had been endorsed at the time the complaint was filed." A 
copy of this ruling is attached to this Report as Exhibit 34, incorporated herein by reference. 

In Lacombe v. Deutsche Bank National Trust Company (1D13-4094; October 14, 2014), the 1st 
DCA reversed a Duval County Circuit Judge's ruling, holding that the Bank's witness was "inco
herent" and insufficient to support the trial court's judgment because the Bank's documents and 
witness did not prove the Bank's standing to bring the foreclosure action. Specific to the wit
ness's testimony was "Exhibit 1" (a list of applicable pooling and servicing agreements covered 
under a Limited Power of Attorney with the Servicer (Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc.)), that the 
Borrower's mortgage note was actually in one of the pools of mortgages referenced in the exhibit 
proffered in Court testimony. This was also noted as a similar issue within this Report. A copy 
of this case is attached to this Report as Exhibit 35, incorporated herein by reference. 

Despite the fact that many Florida courts have little regard for New York case law, one specific 
case, LNV Corp. v. Madison Real Estate, LLC (2010 NY Slip Op 33376(U), York, J.) is one of 
many that cite that MERS may have the right to "assign the mortgage" to LNV Corporation, as 
held in many Florida cases, MERS did not have the right to assign the Note because the Borrow
ers did not grant MERS that right; thus, MERS "could not transfer any rights to the underlying 
note"; thus, LNV did not have standing to foreclose. A copy of this ruling is attached to this Re
port as Exhibit 36, incorporated by reference herein. 

As previously noted at the beginning of this report, the closest that a Florida Court has come to 
seriously negating standing of a Plaintiff REMIC trust was noted in HSBC Bank USA, N.A. v. 
Teresa M. Marra (2008 CA 0630 NC; 12th Jud. Dist., Sarasota Co., FL, Williams, J., Bailey, D., 
Magistrate), attached to this Report as Exhibit 37, incorporated by reference herein. 

In the foregoing case, HSBC attorney (Kahane & Associates) challenged the Magistrate to go 
look up the SEC's file references on the REMIC and Magistrate Deborah Bailey took the attor
ney up on his offer and discovered, as was adopted into the Magistrate's Order, that the note did 
not make the trust pool by the Closing Date. The Examiner believes that HSBC was forced to 
settle because it would have created an "open door'' to attack REMIC trusts' standing in courts 
throughout the State. This in of itself, is suspect based on the review of every REMIC case in
volved in this Report. There is sufficient evidence from other cases across the country that 
MERS-originated Mortgages, intended to be securitized, contravened New York Estates, Powers 
& Trusts § 7-2.4 based on the failure of the Assignment of the Mortgage into the REMIC trust 
within the prescribed time frame allowed (based on the Closing Date of the REMIC) by law. It 
is this case that established the parameters for the assertions by the Examiners in this Report as 
to whether a REMIC trust actually has standing based on improper Assignments of Mortgage. 
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In other cases, the banks have argued that the Borrower cannot attack the REMIC, yet it appears 
the REMIC is where the Borrower's actual loan money came from, not the originating Lender. 

IV. Closing Comments 

In the September 15, 2014 edition, The Florida Bar News reported: 

( 1) Florida foreclosure volume has declined with the number of filings in the first half 
of 2014 about 50% of filings for the same period the year prior; 

(2) The backlog has also been reduced to about one half that of the prior year; and 

(3) Some attribute the reduction in filings to the new foreclosure laws passed in July 
of2013. 

Generally, the new law [HB87] requires more front-end due diligence by lenders to ensure that 
they have the legal right to foreclose. This may, in fact, have caused an increase in internal scru
tiny of loan documents resulting in the delay or postponement of foreclosure filings. To that end, 
examination of these documents revealed that lenders and their foreclosure mill attorney law 
firms continue to be sloppy in their case filings and that there continue to be suspect issues with 
case development and presentation to the Court. The Examiners believe that this scenario is 
common to every county in Florida, not just Osceola County. The fact that we have circuit court 
rulings in Marra and Nash leads the Examiners to further believe that some of the real truths of 
the matter are starting to be acknowledged; however, seemingly by only a handful of judges who 
are willing to be educated on such matters and not simply taking the bank counsel's word for 
every allegation put forth without absolute proof. 

Everyone would like to believe that we have an improved real estate economy due to the corre
sponding willingness of banks to modify loans rather than foreclosing on them may be a factor in 
the reduction in foreclosures. It should be noted that Florida is still at the top in comparison to 
other states in pending foreclosure cases with a backlog still at some 185,000 cases. From previ
ous statistics released by groups such as RealtyTrac and CoreLogic, the 9th Circuit, comprising 
Orange and Osceola Counties, leads the State of Florida as the #1 market area for foreclosure 
activity behind Tampa, Miami and Jacksonville. 

This still does not change the fact that as part of this alleged "front-end due diligence", that doc
ument manufacturing in concert with multiple actors is still a growing concern in light of revela
tions that original notes and mortgages were shredded after they were scanned into the MERS 
electronic database. Based on the results noted within this Report, foreclosure mill law firms 
have demonstrated that in order to survive, they will stop at nothing to assist lenders in document 
manufacturing, whether there is a shred of truth to any of the manufactured documents proffered 
in foreclosure complaints or not. 
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V. Attorney Opinion Statement of Jennifer Englert, The Orlando Law Group, P .A. 
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Armando Ramirez 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Osceola County, Florida 
2 Courthouse Square 
Kissimmee, Florida 34741 

Dear Mr. Ramirez: 
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Grundo, fluiria 32828 4853 

Tel· 407.512 4394 
Fn:-:: 4()7.982.7250 

December 28, 2014 

I have been a member of the Florida Bar since 1999. I have defended over one hundred home 
owners in foreclosure matters and I have seen first-hand how the banks and their servicers have 
harmed home owners in Florida. I have taken foreclosure cases to trial in Osceola County. 

I have been following the actions of Attorneys General of other states with interest to see if they 
will take any action against those taking homes without the proper paperwork in place. Further, I 
have been following any cases that address foreclosures to see if there is any relief for home
owners. 

While there has not been much in Florida in the way of legislation to assist homeowners in fore
closure matters there are indications and the Legislature does want foreclosures to be done hon
estly. 

Rule 1.11 O(b ), Florida Rule of Civil procedures was amended to require verification of mortgage 
foreclosure complaints involving residential real property. The primary purpose of this amend
ment is clearly to provide incentive for the plaintiff to appropriately investigate and verify its 
ownership of the note and the ability to foreclose on it. It also shows the need to conserve judi
cial resources that are currently being wasted on inappropriate foreclosures and to avoid harm to 
defendants resulting from suits brought by plaintiffs not entitled to enforce the note. 
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Rule 1.11 O(b) requires a clean, plain statement of accuracy by the person who actually verifies 
the truth of the claims made, and who is identified as being in a position to actually do so. It 
would seem that the investigation set forth in the report illustrates many cases in Osceola County 
alone where the individuals who verified Complaints and supporting affidavits were not qualified 
to do so or lacked the pertinent knowledge to do so. This alone warrants further investigation. 

Throughout the report the Examiner found a clear pattern where ''users" of the MERS® System 
used it to benefit corresponding (originating) lenders, interim funding lenders and warehouse ag
gregate lenders, who make use of investor money through the pass-through exchange without 
perfecting the transactions in a timely fashion. Borrowers as well as the applicable government 
regulatory agencies were unaware notes and mortgages would be converted into image files, to 
be manipulated and traded within the MERS® System so that no one would know their ultimate 
path (or whether the loans were fractionalized over multiple trust pools in deviation of GAAP) in 
the securitization system. MERS appears to have been utilized in RICO-style fashion to cover 
up the chain of title to make it "fit" into a pattern where the real property records were used to 
show the path of the mortgage, while the bearer paper (manufactured and manipulated by com
puter) has been used as evidence in court time after time to foreclose on homeowners. In no oth
er litigation scenario has such unreliable evidence been used on such a regular basis. 

Unfortunately members of the bar have been complicit in the efforts of MERS and its users. I 
am sure the reader is aware of the several attorneys and law firms which have been disciplined 
and closed due to their behavior in foreclosure litigation as well as the abatement of foreclosure 
cases due to their behavior. In my fifteen years as a bar member this is unprecedented. 

As someone who has dealt with these firms for the past five years I can say that many do their 
best to hide discovery document, sell notes prior to trial and do whatever else they can to keep 
defense attorneys from being able to talk to needed witnesses and review the pertinent docu
ments until trial. As Judges have mandates to move these cases along, continuances to get the 
needed information are virtually non-existent. 

The attached report exists to bring light to the abuses of MERS and the court system to improp
erly foreclose on homeowners. The Examiner found evidence of several statutory violations 
which will be outlines in the remainder of my letter. 

First, in order to perpetuate the scheme of robo-signing and the creation of false affidavits, Flor
ida Statute § 817.15 was violated in that false entries were made to add corporate officers to the 
books of banks and servicers with intent to defraud which is a felony of the third degree. These 
false entries were to create new officers so that they could sign assignments and other documents 
to allow foreclosures to sail through. Creating false officers also violates Florida Statutes 
§817.155 and §817.16. 
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These statutory violations are minor compared to the actions the "fraudulent officers" perpetrat
ed. A highlight of the report is violations of § 817.535 of the Florida Statutes which prohibits 
filing of false documents or records against real or personal property.A person who files or di
rects a filer to file false documents with the intent to defraud or harass another commits a felony 
of the third degree. Repeating this act is a felony of the second degree. 

There are also obvious civil penalties which could be addressed with the findings of any criminal 
investigation which would be a further deterrent to this type of behavior. 

The report includes many examples of fraudulent documents which purport to claim under oath 
that the signor had personal knowledge of the facts attested therein which contained false and 
misrepresentative information with the intent to deprive the property owner of their property in 
violation. The "MERS® System" then utilized fraudulent documents to manipulate data in third
party computer software platforms generated and utilized by document manufacturing plants and 
foreclosure mill law firms to create, manufacture and file documents containing questionable and 
potentially false and misrepresentative information under the direction of the servicers and title 
companies to bring fraud on the court. 

These actions also consist of forgery in violation of Florida Statutes § 831.01 as MERS, the 
banks and servicing companies falsely made, altered and counterfeited thousands of public 
records, in matter wherein such certificate, return or attestation was received as legal proof; with 
intent to injure or defraud any person, which is a felony of the third degree. By publishing the 
forged instruments including false deeds, instruments or other writings mentioned in § 831.01 
knowing the same to be false, altered, forged or counterfeited, with intent to injure or defraud 
employees of MERS, its users and the applicable law firms were guilty of a felony of the third 
degree in violation of§ 831.02. 

The report also outlined statutory violations pursuant to § 117.105 for all the evidence of false 
and fraudulent notary work based on false acknowledgment on the written instrument which are 
each felonies of the third degree. 

It is clear in the report there is vast evidence of violations of several Florida criminal statutes by 
MERS, its users and some law frrm personnel. From there it is easy to establish under RICO, 
Florida Statute § 895, an "Enterprise" (a corporation, business trust, or other legal entity) en
gaged in a "pattern of racketeering activity," (at least two incidents of racketeering conduct that 
have the same or similar intents, results, accomplices, victims, or methods of commission or that 
otherwise are interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated incidents.) The 
Examiner has documented several hundred pages of incidents where documents were falsely cre
ated in order to foreclose on homeowners which is a clear pattern of activity. The sole purpose 
of generating the documents was to have "evidence" to use in a Court of law at summary judg
ment and trial. 
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It is practically impossible to poke holes in these documents as they are verified by witnesses 
who clearly had no role in creating them who simply testify that according to a computer system 
they can see in their office the documents are genuine. 

As a member of the Bar I do hope that action is taken against the manufacturers of false docu
ments as they have been so extensively used to the detriment of so many citizens in our Courts. 
Had these documents not been so easily available then there would not have been nearly as many 
foreclosure cases which cluttered dockets and prevented so many from getting a fair trial. All of 
this is incongruous with our legal system. 

Sincerely, 

Jennifer A. Englert, Esq. 
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